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ATATSIAT MRTRT o2 |

AV BIdl TS ITHS HaTe

T FFIAIH] BT, T Aledl FISHUSTATS T 99 ATHFR 03 AT AT 1, TAT [aeei AT ATariera Qs anfie v
gheqarierdl UUE 9 AATed (INTERNATIONAL HOSPITALITY AND TRAVEL AWARD) 3RT “ofte d@&e /g9 &lea’
(BesT BanQuET/ EVENT HOTEL) %1 I#FHTH JaTH TR 2T | S<h AATE TieeH ?ff UG ATATSTAT T e lIEea
Rt | e AT AATS AT JiAtsd AATS @1 | A a9 INSH T gfenartadret & faaer sraarieedrg
IAEE TR FET IRFHPT AN RS TG |

AR TRy afey Nexe @

TG FEIATRT 1, T Fledl FISHUSATS T % ¥ 30 LR, 033 AT § &Il UHET~T beig- gled (el Ao
fasTeeT ofoiX a9 A129 (BLTM) TG HATSERT Y& T “HE TaRdaH afsg 9rede” (Most Exclusive Wedding
Product) 3T IFEATAA TRTHT 3T |

Iz Sfewm afeg dea sare

TF FHEHTHT 81, T ATedl FGHTSIA Td Go TR 033 AT &A1 o=l T[EASHT 9w 4198 gRI1 A o afgs uweg

ATEHEEed AATEH (SWLA) [ & a1 Y R ‘It e+ afes gled ware” (Best DESTINATION WEDDING HOTEL 1N NEPAL)
TaT RTH faar |
Frainegd, &R T it aiRgeEes 3 ffesd aarEar e ™"

oo

TITART AMTATER AN 00 Fqrewr fafsr smriftga, e ¥ ity #rueeare gaifad fafa=r afeadmafire
IRYAHT FTHAT AT | AT FHLT AMTAIHR IANH AN ATHT AT TAHT Agcdqul IH1E 91+ fafree @rerer gean
T HEATHAEE Taehl G, S [+ FHITH W S

Fritegd aikgsr
FH R0R3 |, ARRINGT AMTATAHER FANTA HMAS-92 H HeMREE aiqdl IR TUH IMExedl 8 | Fas-9%
HETHRIITGHT FHIdEE IR TWfg 87 J9eed [qeai A=Rited ATeed aiiT STl (a9 @il g1 | SO

AT FHHT, FYh ARSI, TATIA T TR bel ANTEE T J9Ewe AT Tqaes FH TH G, Tad Aaried
ANTHTAT dfg AUH G | SANTA ATAETH] AR JTATHFAEEAT MGUH TRATAeedATs ATCHATT Y EH B, Al
TRISAIAE FREFEE ¥ [aad HaHesd M=y S0 FRYRTITAT J97d qIRTEd g7 |

q. faremdt @rew faw

T R0%3 AT A fqedaamdr e qiged, FHe-92 TAH ARited AMETdTs (M S| A1 qTadl S | @raeh!
AT, FATTEAH HeEs T MERTH! ] adTer T Hringd Tehawed! Taedrs d@y THH a1
Zadd! AHIATS THA AT T THG, |

R RIS TREdT

TrEI-ATAhe ¥ HA-TAHT R [dhraes Aled Td &% IRadaed SRISHIqd Jritgd arrdadls d93
T a3 | A -l TRadesd [Hal Fqeedl aRad rg Geiad ®9HT Ta1 aeRe® @ied ga gal
TeFEEd I JATHT J(qhd e 97 qRs |

3. Ay IREdqeH HEAEE

STEar AREdRl aEal favasardr yerael favaeardy ®UAT SRE WEH AR qEAEdl MRS | arer ar

o ~

qTER ST STeaTg, GREHH FRREEITT TIAF] FGHA 2T FARTATS ST HTATHT HER T8 TAAHT 1T [ATS G, |
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T 3033 AT gferor ufearerr efearfadl SRR FIfAE-9% #T FeTHNAlE, Sferdr TAINTHT AUST G | AR, SR T T
STEAT FUET ATHT AT 99 GleaT A=aRIgd TIaHT gig TUH G | elddesd @] ¥ qRall Yeldhdewdrs yrafaesar
fa FraaTe fMReaR SIAT ST A@HT A | THFT AN T 9T T G (FH-IREH) THE AR FOHT e B
7 Elade®d TATERU-HA] AATe® Ml G | TG &7h UG AEh{dh TrIET T Udeiasd WAes Taahesd A
TRYTRT Frgebl TTHT TEHT G, ST TaT AT TATFE® ANTHF EITACTH AFSH ATTATG TTFHT T |

TEAAT Wiiafere q4r nftier FEERTH AT S @rere gare (#eR®) ST

FEEAT GTatae qAT SATIF FEANTHT AN TFTART GTelehl JATd (HEd®) AT UTad] TeHTNTare &3 gded TeanTT
IR AT a5, | TqA FAATAT HA-TaGACHE Tedes HIhd aled (s dersd qadn TH 94 |

FIT-9%, T FETHRIANS, TATAHT Eaet FANT IH: STl ANTDT B | ISl AT Gl [THATATHIEE . GIoThl B, ATAKE
TASTAT THA AT Birgd Ta AIHET AT TTA ETAPT ANTHT FeoTed TRTETH [ATTH B | TIEHABT [GIaAelTg Farai
AT Ereeeed TATaRu-HAT FATe® AIATGEH G | A(ChiaH, T AE(ad TaSTHl JaraR Thee qded Taraamr

ATqIlg AUHT G | ATATT TEATEEH] AT ATHAR! SHAT T@TS STl Hecdqul ARTTes HUHTS |

q. IrHror farcivaor FEww

T 3033 AT YTHIV FARTHOHT THRH Sl W STH BleABEATs [qrlaed AR ¥ JaEeE dig T Aqaves
JaH TRH B, Tad AFAT F¥eh ATHAH] ATAT T (Unique Off-Grid Experience) @INREH TIheEals
AT TG, |

R, FHT AT TRASATEE

TR FFIRT TAGE T (b A ¥ [Aeaed [RATIAT FFIaT T S[qeTayHl Tiddhaedls AThMd T qFg,
ST A TAEEH ATTHAT HTEIT Bleaaed] AN TETSTHT FedRT TATSS, |

3. ii® qe

AT T TR STFE® (TATHS) ¥ SAMAAAT JagdT T e Aifqeed Tacheed] AT FIA=T  ATATHHT
farereeers fafadirzo 74 gies ded ¥ EMEeEH 33T TUH T |

¥. feil wdeq yada

faTT 9T JaQgAHl AT TXFRT ST & Tede®d alcagedls AR ATATAH [qeaaardl aRadqaa( afsthag

X o = o ~
M dTATERUHAT A-THeE AT ITcHIled THS |

Y. FY-wdeT gia SVE

F A Figd T WEE F ATHTE® Ta60d T aldaeed [FaTeedi T qehrd T T GgATeEad! AT
TSN ATHT TAAT T AThH AT T HT FCATEAATS TAR TRURT SIS TRFR (R -I-3G) JAHTEE JaT
T gEvEs faeir T FaEg | 99 033 W Auee  gfererfadt sEn fafre ¥ IR-ArHT FREEwES AARTE
HATTHT G ST TGH FTAAFIETAT Jed@Ad JAE I TFATEAT G | AT T ¥ [addesd SARTHI dAhadl
¥ U ATSTATH ATAIAFATATS WS (a7 [hafeh FATe STaRifegd, &g ¥ Mgy Micefierarare garfad ga &qHr
aftadd AETedl TUe INGYAHT ST ATeieh B |
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gfaaet fafaar =ne snfte ader FrigwRT T wfasrer gheson

= ATEF T4 050/59 F1 050 FAH ¥ T (39 AR R0R3) TFAH JFIHT T EdeAdl T ATdF TuF Flal
FAYTRN YU FRAE R @G R0 AR FIATHT JAATHT A L& FRAE ¥ AN £O R FIAT AT THT g | Aferedd] i
FYRT Flel FATTHT BT ARAT (Room Occupancy) 45.52 IANT @ TAATHT =1 ATTIF TR 050 Filded ¥
T (3] AHAX R0R3) TEHS! AATIHT FIBT ARART 3. 9% Ufaerd @bl & | el 9fq FleT Had Heas? (Average
Room Rate (ARR) ) ¥ 3u@ed Ufd a1 @& (Revenue Per Available Room (RevPAR)) FHT: & 2930 T %,
¥ R0c TR G TH Td ATMIF qUH! FET AGIHT FHT: T 5 ¥ ¥Y T ¥ QUS T 1947 |

SR T AT TR

FEA AT AT TEATeEATs TSR ALMBAH qadTadd dATHT T&TT T Iqagal ded M=y Icared, Jar qar

.

FrAuTEsd T IR T Il faeaqR qAH ¥ &R aeaed] aRarsHesdl SE@ar 0% Wl S | aleadl Tarsdrs

(el oY o

AT IS ATET TACHEEH AT &1dd THE Twded o Thel TP R GANATAT 6 GaFATE § IUHITTF

TEAGEHT HFIA] JU G T8l THIUH AT fa afhes; |

e T

UEATEEH] AN F(AGTEeh! (&R, TAHI T TR T H@ATd! qeal THE FATIH TTAT T Al TATHTT T
TRIATTRT AT AR HTH RN AR G | STIAT AT ARTHA F@RTT TH AGF T ATRYE arge qal Alqraasad anT
afeel AT T ¥ FHB] A, TR ¥ TRl AlqiaeEerg Al T ATCHT ATrERued] Y @ TR BT

[

[aNl o) c
rAR=IAT Tl e |

WY AT

BTl T STHT qE) @ITAUh! T ATl TEATEEATs ARTH I T IJrlewmehl HATT GAewehl AT (o a7 (AT
TAT FEATEEHT TATEAL I AHTSHE HARSAT THl AT ARTHETH T &I T4 | STaetebl AT FATAA BTl
Afafar aTgATeSeTS T R FAdTe® 99 TG aed Afqrd qEAr Tedkewed! iy e qRT THHl oAt festree afewent
R FeTAT TR TR ATTATH a1 TRIIS, |

QAT TR

ZEead AT IR@dh FF AT T AT aRars 9 qAr B9 [GEUH G | TEATEEH AT A ISR aTdrERoT Y&

<
(a¥

TS, TP AT ARTH T Gloveeehl AT AT T AT T ATeh T G (FTEA) TATHFT FTHT IRATTT TTHT 3 |

GEL ﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁil aiﬂélasw
ISl Fafead qgaes UM, @lcd, T TN ggeevdls AT ¥ TqRtd T Zaeedl IThd ATard qfadrdr i
AEATYl ATHAlg TUHN B | AT AATI AE FreTeT TFIeT IR I ITHT AFbUF [SHEAAT AR TRUH qedewd aarsH

IAH AATIAHTH AleTeT T [T @i ATATIITEATESH! AN IJTAEARP! ARTH T ITeRUIERIT FiadT Ja Taa |
Y faeaR wF T AT P

)

TETAT (ANTH) & GoedT ATATERT A WIS AN TEHTEEH N Th ATHYF ATSISN A JaTH Thl g, STel

Afdfaese QIS 9 ETaTehl AT foF, JRTH T a1 A Bl GHET G TG | T () &bl faedrer araete!
TEHET TTATATE TTSS, AT TTEATeEH AATANF T 313 (RS fafeg) 1 wqdr afezrd TVt (197+) et
AfataargaTeEasl fafae frfamsr arafardesdas w1 T |

e IREH TEHE T A

T qRETHT q3vT TG0l AT AT TRIAT T FHAT (Gafig qefer afead] TRuepr TRI=dT qare 2raad

TEATEwTs TETHl GIraaTcHed SIHT HAHEH ¥ 9w ATfel ATATa¥uraT Ga= Taehl HT qHT=rd Tl 3 | a7 & fetig
T T I AR [aF =M qEATesd a9 el G |
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T FFIATA GoaTee TEhT TRIAAT qRATAAT ¥ FATEARIfgel ATATAPT ATHTATS IRETHT T T TF SIEeTHT ITerge

< >

[ AN NN [aNl o < o

qTEATEwed! ATNT ATEYIR! Tl AT o FATs A= TH FFIATR T JTagdl el q@sa, | qraarewe! fafa=
THAEEH] HUH! [aeR T TRIdeed Jqdls 9% AThU®d, ARTHE] W@RITANT aF a8 318 T Afaiadrs TARETHAH
AT Gfed T 1S TSy | MREIR TRIAT ¥ AR AN FFER GET T giaeg § | WY, EeAs TgHeedrs
ATTSHT o9 ATTEARU ¥ TATSAT a9TS YaTH T HFAl 999 qea T8l FReTs T TWHS |

qfst fran faferdeseor

M gfeqeriady fafes

FEIAT BTSHTUST JTHF 8T FEATH! TSHIP TIAT FUE AT TIT BEISAEE FoaTeA T SATTATANF 0TIk (Ao
TR ATHR FFIAP] TUC: FMTHCA I8b] HFIAT TA, 053 A=Id 1 dledl gfererfate fafree are quia: wyed
TETTF FFIAT GEATIAT T ITh HFIATHT AR GTTHT FAAT Y BTSN TR S | TAHT ATk, FHIATT GeTaF
FFOAT, Aiedl efeqerterdy fafraeers &a 9 Fe 3% @M@ ¥o F9R AT 99 R GRTHT T @y o it
FATRT R TRTDH G |

“Qred” e R

FHAD “Hiedl” Fred adad ARAYRH] “Hledl didrs A fordaq” el SEedAl “Hiedl a¥dre ™I Feael, TSl
TIATHT GTERT, FIEHIHIEHT “Hledl d¥erg [KAld FHIhdbla” T ANTHAT T AR [STecTehl AIRBIEHT “Hledl a&drg EId
TRFE” FIvE T TSHTE i a1 9= TR EHT Bldedet® ATaEIT AT FATATHT ATTH B, |

JHATEF, 97 T3 aled ¥ RAE Fel THANT Foardd 97 ATEITIAAT A3 JARMAT (ASTATSH) e & ¥ [ &ed ¥
fegrdars 9fF Tiedl FTeeare 5 oA T SHAEIH G |

qredy e kA o

Aedt aeavg e Faam Jurasl anTHdT 9397 dwaera feaan foreer araqr feaa afeerimn yrafas efaredr av=r dre=
FATIT TF FlaaT T ARTAGHET (AHRRD) K& AEed=T 9 g | I REear &9 dfq glaar g fafire amenge
(feetaa faeetn) 3 35 et Gfasi~rae faear afeqd Afadr TF9= & YR TaT TEAT HIoET EHl G | TEAewd @I T
ST SATIRATTT Jawdehl ATNT g5 Radeat® ¥ IR F(adT TFI~ 95F Fees died, Raed [qa7 AATST ATST TUCHEEH]
AT ARSI, GATRer T FUe [T T qeaferd o ThHT afTewesd! AEedehdl TR T 145, | AT (et
9 T qUf Jlaar G TR AT ARTHETAT T AT=I9 fasraer At REd afqer wdewesd dhT qThyo Ioe |

FIAIER AToh SGHTF TATTATT TERIATH] AT A BT TU7 STHAHT TEhT led! efeqareds fataages

TAT 17, dSATH T dSHIS I=Id KAl AT ¥ T Heiehl B |
I Bled T FHFEIABI JU STAEHT TeHhl Aledl BeIeNAdl [AHdgd! ATHAT a7 HTH TeH ISAH T dSHIG JART
T TS ST TRUHT TSATE FATTATT TERIATR] TAXIT A= FEIATHT FT7g, I8 AT T dSHIP FANT T Eraet

I qAqT =T AEEH G |

WA ARLE, B

Aredl a¥dwe aadl, qaredepl HIel Y9 A= FAgel [TelThl TEFAHT Teehl S9Tehl Al &bl Gfeedl qi=l q el ardel
2T, ST g%l AT ARTHETAT FaT 2T THH AT ATHT [Sogd T THEBNAT ATelfeh AfTTET BT AT SAFDAT SFehlSg |
Ih BT S¥ FaT TTEAT FISE%, TIAT AN Vel Gool TEW (XL, USAT [ARTSaar Ik ¥%Eewe, U3l AR &vg, Tl
(A I, T A Y000 FTHeH! Tl THT THRIE TITHIS H&T, T3l (@A I, ¥ T3l T & B |

Ih e T FFEIAIH] IO SAMTHEHA] el Fledl ereaariadl [afaegHl ATHAT 3dl FAH WEHl A+, ¢ AH T ISHH
TARTHT AT Frafeqd FFIIEs a0 R TUHT SSHIG TASIauT ARHIATHT TUH Fae J=Hd &l I qTe, o8
qE T ISHH TANT T8 HFATIT T AT TR B |
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HIedl a¥eee REE TRF(E (et AT T RAEH FTvg A Foalad) TATed! ANTHAT 9T AHIR [STecAThl ATRISHT
Fafead g | A1 RAEHT 90 a7 e T R FaT Y3 a1 Fied Taiel ¥ ARTHAT & ¥ T FISEE el G | TFaeea T
AT g AT T ATfedy fraept AT THIEHAT SISTAehT Sqaed TRUH g | RAEHT HT9eeR o, q07-JaT1 T, T Forqe fedre
SJEATHT FITHT T TSP ¥ SHUS HeTew bl Gl | TAHT ATATIR ATHT TR ATHIT ¥ TETSEEels qHIel TFAT (T

T ATETHT TNTH HTHEF FYATAAHT &1 | FFIAIEE SToehl SSHIF TOToIqus TERIATH Saed] el HFawrel qur

~ Lo L.

AT Teehl Tled! gfeaarfad] fafadg®! aal aive, I8 A9 ¥ IHTH A=aId RETEH! SHATATIT T FoaTdd e hl 3 |

el awe e Ffese (@@
el a¥dre RATE FIEFIRIE TATAD] MU TRl GM@RT I FIEFIHEHT FAEIT G | GExThl TAUYT TETSemdl
Fatedd, KA fala= JFReE da" fqeodes ST TRISS Iehse AT HIoEe, gIdew I [Msil wivl qadiedadl 3

FaT faedTe® |ied ¥R &Y gl [Soed TRUH FIEEE Aledd! [l AT=aeqd Y 148, | qgAresd [aad [rei
TEavee, faey Y, foan wR, ¥ arAr fafa= drekaresel @ice dEa ¥ AaAe faq gaes | REdd wdieed g9
TE, TF qUi-dar 5w, 1 giaaes ¥ AARedd it SiTe 2atEd giaar gam 16 | faRie afeea fEe
faarse FraraTd GEARET TS | TG GERTH! FTehiad drade] HEHT 9 ¥ [arfadr @t areesr aiiT 3ad
T FATEUHT G | FFIAEE AT JSHIP ATSH TEhIATh] AT FId HFIAI T THEHT &l Aledl afeqardar

AT HT qTve, < ATH ¥ dSHIH A= RAEH AT T oo KA, |

el Rrafern Sieeq aar fd@dg o f

FIIATH TeTdF FHAT, Aol gieqeartare fafade AR s @l saaatas FUive XIS AHIbaie s TRl Tehrddr
TATEAT FIh AR FHFIAT Aledl RTATRH Blded] qdT KA 9T, . FLATIAT T AqreTse T TRl gea (Ao qem
FEATAT THHT AT AT TR G |

qredl Rmafes 2 uog REdq wifa o dredl eferarfads fafaegs A« aal Jusr J1ve, s 99 91 dSHw
FT ATHAT BlEARE FoATAT TG, | Aledl BTNl [ATAdS 8 FFIAeh U F@MTHE TUH! FEaF FFIAT 8l | T3
FHEIATET TT=HT TSHTE TOToTd T (ATSU) ARRIATH] SHALT A Aledl a6dvg T T Aedl aoavg AT Wl S |

et Rrafes geeq aar Rade urgwe fafaes®r @i, SATa=ar e qur FoaTa"H T Jedhl TuTdd] Al Ja9T, did

fSTeeTerT FaTerTseraT safead &g (LEED) THIUIRT 91 A W &1dd “Hiedl a%e g MIHaR” TaTenTsel, TOETAT FaTeH]
WEH I

fewe greRATMe WAk F9 TENe fafaes

FHHI [EHTA e UTaR %9 HFT ygde fdtade (EATe greeer=e uray &Y9) AThd |idhRil 9rer HF=T qIgae
fatade (Arerefl ey H¥=T) AT A T, |

FFIATHT [EHTA FrEAeel ey HURYA YL, ([EHT gree=emel ey &Y9) &0 A IS 4.29% &1 a0

NN N

TR B | BT ZraRAHA UTay FOUReTRl Widhell urar wer urid. (dAreewnft  rar w6 oA 8, ST9E

AT Aol ATdehell STAfagd AT (ATl Aideell STafadgd AR Fsarad TUH g | Jideal dreahrei

AT ATATSATA ST TR FTAR, Aiead! Al Tafaga s aied frgar samaatas & fa=gd i
TS HAAE FoaTdd TRRed! G | Araeprefl STafasgd A 2068, A 4R 3R T (9% TATE R0%3) FHT i
FYR! AT Ih HFIATD] T AGRT AR %, 99 HT &l ATAIT [0 TRebl {0l S&el1e T7 HFIel QIAeT e oA
¥. 99,00,000|- (T ATHIL YT TH T |




¥R ATt URTERA 00 /3050 Soaltce Hotel Limited
FHAIB FAAIAE AR T TG FRFES

TR TAad, faey T gfeqarfadl SN, 8 THE #FRE dEe® a1 FHIEA Wl B | [EHTed SR S9ThT JTorar ]
TIHT TR TTH(TF Arade AEfTe Ieeedrs ATHTT Tee | O A7 & HaH GiRade ¥ IThfas Jeraessd R Afq
Faaefid TeH @ | A T 9 T8 SFFardel A Hecql g | fFafe a9 dferare wiedkeedrs A 993
¥ Eed FoATATHT ATl TATSH AR, | TUSTHT ATNT TATIRHT TR T Taoel [arael TeaedegeHal AT qeof adrsd Hecaqur
AT Teag | AN I{de®, qREATHF SUIeEd T IANATS TG ITe, Tafh HAThag T Jagd™ 0ides, HaHT
frTdTe®, Tadeeed! ATHT 9T g7 ATTH AT, et A=l Jaeael, ardravel YRETvTe JATHess, Hqiehiqe FYaT,

T yfafuer fasdrae gaq aftgeaars @R famg | a9 1Y, @ed ISl T HeTHRIEEd JIaAdrg AR &T87 997
T I3, T TGS TG GAPT TITPT AT T ¥ GREAT AT ATaYTF I4g | TICTHT TAIHBT TR [qehrepl AT
e JUNTH fadir faepre ? efererfady amer a¥ig GHi=d T 41 #RE qeaseqid el Goddr I qwardd daeds 3 |

WA TS FAREIIS (CSR) HT Tatataes

Aredl &led fafias "SHL" 1 SEINTd |rTiee gavaiae (CSR) dw=d fdfafueewr @irg @#r g | i
AT UH, 0% ¥ AGINTE qaarg MaArael, 095 &l TaeqTel qrATTE IJAvaled vl Taiaiers Feqma 1=
ATTAT TATTCRT G | FEIIH] YRR ATHINTE IR fAtafaes®es Ieed FEIAIR H1d &bl AN AR f&w
fareprr ETfae T T FHISIATS FEART I &l | HFIA[hl IHTE Iavalded v Tidiaigesed Mg THa T FHSTH
AT ATATHT ANTETT T ARTRERT STAAEIRAT AR T 2 (8 S{raeesl AT ANTETE AT ATHIIH] SHATEE TART THH
FHIgd @ | FFIATA AMIF aT 09% /050 AT ATHT ARINT ATHINE ITRENIcE d=airq fafaer wfafafaes a=aras wewr
g |

AT geet fafades JRANTd AAITAF IJARETIT dAvaid FISHTST aTe e Giass (=) g & 4o o &
It FEANT TR G | T IIR FEANTATe §5 ANTHT Faror TRUaRr B | STqer Frefl gaerenl Shrdr ffearar e fwsim=
(KIOCH) THe &ITEATEE aTe ALIATAH] (HHI ¥ FIFemehl AT Y G FYAT T FTSHTSH JEITARTS ATRITCABIH]
FATCAT BTSSHT FATAT AT FLTATS TATIATHT AT T Y ARG F9AT &bl g | AT ANTETTEE ATedl a1ee fAraage! Tarerdr
FTASABTR] T FaT [aed® T Jiqegarars qee TWH § |

HITeT FRTEwe! AfrTh, Aol 2l faraded At Tede®aT %o 33 @1 F9dT JRTEH T8 LRI ATHIE Saearae
Tiafafaes fawar TRl @ | 91 Tedewd Aledl aled [aiaded =T, R, ardraxyl, W@ J4T, T gd G qeafead
FUEATEEATE TG TS [afq= ATHINF T GHEIIF P TH ATHT Taagdrers qiarar=d T S |
9. QqHHATTE FRAATR AT Ger qara
Aredl Bled [AtAdSHl F¥INTd AHHTSE IJAEIcd JATHEEH] JTHIE =qAT JaadT T9 Iead Biel Jaraad]
FAATOTHT FEART THT THIAT EH B | FIGHIVST HETIRUIAHT a7 7. 93 T FTATAIITH GHET T HETRT
JEdT I FIAHTEIFT ARNEHT AT T TRHT &7 | 47 JArare] Hecaqu ATHINF qeleedls GriaT T4 SATdrers
forfera T HRTET ST Hfgd T ATEYTF B T HIHT AT SHSES, |

R UEF TN, BISR &S, T CCTV & AW

Tredl Ead fafadgd Aedl FISATS! IRTTH! XX (G99 T A=A T ATHA SAEEHT YR Tars 3rad
FEH =ATAH G | TF RIS ASF e TS T TS0 Tehl g | GITRUR TR ATIREFT AN FIgaR
fectfag T=aTa™ TP THHT AT CCTV FATHRIEE TS TN G | FFIAIT FISATIST HET RIS 8T 7. 93
TARTHAT T BIEAR gATEEATs THT TR ATATER0 [FST T A&d FFIAd el 3 |
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3. FISHTS! HETTRUIAHT T A FATH FHEIAT YSF [FARAT TR

el gied fafaded FIoHTSl HEM RIed a1 7. 93 ¥ AL o Ah BISHTSIEHR GHETATASSE ST
FARMII ATATSTAT THN G | AT TeAAT Hiedl AISIME HIATHIE [ATFHER] TSHAT TG A T AT TMSA HT

~ Q
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B.K. AGRAWAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

MEMBER CROWE GLOBAL

Saraswati Vatika

122 Pannabhiti Marg,

Sifal - Ward No. 7

P.O. Box 3761, Kathmandu, Nepal.

T: +977-1-4581865, 4567694, 4567568
E: bkag@crowe.com.np

W: www.crowe.com/np

Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Shareholders of
Soaltee Hotel Limited

Opinion:

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of M/s Soaltee Hotel Limited (hereinafter referred
to as ‘the Company’) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16,
2023), and the Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows attached thereto, for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes &
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statement read together with Notes forming part of the financial statement give the information
required by the provisions of Nepal Companies Act, 2006, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and, give a true and fair view in conformity with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), of the state
of affairs of the Company as at Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), its Profit/(Loss) including its Total
Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows and the Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statement section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statement under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2006 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. Based on the circumstances and facts of the audit, we
consider following as key audit matters:

S.N. Details of Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

1 Revenue Recognition
(Refer Note 2.2.16 "Revenue” and Note 3.15 of the financial statements)

Revenue from sale of service (hereinafter | Our audit procedures included the following:
referred to as "Revenue”) is recognized at the | , Agsessed  the appropriateness  of

the

time of delivery of services and it is probable
that the future economic benefits will flow to
the Company and that revenue and associated

Company's revenue recognition accounting
policies in line with NFRS 15 (Revenue from
Contracts with Customers) and testing the

costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably
measured and no any performance obligation
is pending with respect to revenue recognized.

accounting of revenue in books of accounts
thereof.

B.K. Agrawal & Co. is a member of Crowe Global, a Swiss verein. Each member firm of Crowe Global is a separate and independent legal entity. B.K. Agrawal & Co. and its affilfates are not
responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe Global or any other member of Crowe Global. Crowe Global does not have an ownership or partnership interest in B.K. Agrawal & Co.
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S.N.

Details of Key Audit Matters

How the matters were addressed in our audit

Revenue is key driver of the business and
recorded in complex [T system and
environment. Likewise, revenue also includes
high number of individual and low value
transaction therefore in respect of services
provided there is risk that revenue is recorded
inappropriately relative to the provision of the
underlying service.

Therefore, due to significant risk embedded in
revenue we have identified revenue
recognition as a Key Audit Matter for the

Evaluated the integrity of the Company's
general information and technology control
environment and tested the operating
effectiveness of IT application controls over
revenue recognition, the detailed process flow
of sales, segregation of duties for the process
followed, automated steps and manually
intervened processes.

Performed detailed analysis of Revenue,

analytical testing with sales information filed
with tax authorities, testing the timing of its

recognition and accuracy of the amounts
recognized and verification of the supporting
information of the Revenue transactions.

e Tested a sample of revenue transactions in
relation to the provision of services room sales
and assessing them against relevant
supporting documentation/sales contracts to
determine income has been appropriately
recognized.

2 Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property
(refer Note 2.2.6, 2.2.8, 3.1 and 3.3 of the Financial Statements)

There are areas where management | We assessed the controls in place over the fixed
judgement impacts the carrying value of | asset, evaluated the appropriateness of
property, plant and equipment and investment | capitalization process, performed tests on costs
property and their respective depreciation or | capitalized, the timeliness of the capitalization of
amortization rates. These include the decision | the assets and the derecognition criteria for assets
to capitalize or expense the costs, the annual | retired from active use. In performing these
asset life review: the timeliness of the | procedures, we reviewed the judgments made by
capitalization of assets and the wuse of | the management including the nature of underlying
management assumptions and estimates for | costs capitalized, impairment, determination of
the determination or the measurement and | realizable value of the assets retired from the
recognition criteria for assets retired from | active use, the appropriateness of useful life of
active use. Due to the materiality in the context | assets. We have observed that the management
of the balance sheet of the company and the | has regularly reviewed the aforesaid judgements
level of judgment and estimates required, we | and there are no material misstatement of
consider this to be a Key Audit Matter. impairment and capitalization of assets

current period.

Other Information:

The directors are responsible for the other information such as "Report of Board of Director's/Chairman’s
Statement" to be presented in the Annual Report and Accounts for FY 2079/80 (2022/23) of the Soaltee
Hotel Limited. Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express any audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated above, any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether,
based on audit work done by us on financial statement, the information therein is materially misstated or
inconsistent with the financial statements. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements:

The company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that are operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Member Crowe Global
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In preparing the financial statement, the respective management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial information.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of financial statement, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. We are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting palicies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statement represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be considered to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters.

Member Crowe Global
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We describe these matters in our auditors’ report ynless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
On the basis of our examination, we would like to further report that:

i) We have obtained information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of oyr audit.

i) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of such books;

iii)  In our opinion, the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity
attached thereto, for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes & information dealt
with by this report are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2006 and are in
agreement with the books of account maintained by the company;

iv)  In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the business of the
Company has been conducted satisfactorily; and

v)  To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Company necessary for the purposes of the audit,
we have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of the
Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed any
misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the company or committed any accounting fraud
in the company.

)

B.K. Agrawal, FCA

Managing Partner
Kathmandu For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Date: 17 November, 2023 (01 Mangsir, 2080) Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 231122CA00018RjIMi

Member Crowe Global
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General Information

Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Company or SHL) is a limited liability company registered with Office of Company
Registrar as per erstwhile Company Act. Its shares are enlisted with Security Board of Nepal (SEBON)
and listed and traded at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. (NEPSE). The registered office of the Company and
the principal place of business is located at Tahachal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Since its incorporation more
than 56 years, SHL has been catering the Tourism sector services with five-star quality hotel facilities
and flight catering kitchen since its commercial operation. SHL has invested in subsidiary Company
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. for expanding its hotel business. Through Soaltee Hospitality Ltd., wholly owned
subsidiary, it has also invested in Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd.

The Company owns and operates a deluxe luxurious property classified under Five Star category by
the Government of Nepal with business name and brand "The Soaltee Kathmandu" hotel at Tahachal,
Kathmandu Metropolitan City ward No 13, Kathmandu, Nepal. The property (hotel) is owned and
operated by the Company. The Soaltee Kathmandu has 285 saleable rooms ranging from Deluxe, Club
to Suites. Further, the Company also owns and operates The Soaltee Gate Gourmet, an Inflight Catering
Division under a Technical Assistance Agreement with Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte. Limited, Singapore.

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the meeting of the Board of Directors on 17
November 2023 (01 Mangsir 2080) and has recommended for approval by shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
2.1. Basis of Preparation
2.1.1. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as
issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Nepal.

2.1.2. Basis of Measurement

These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for the following material
items:

- Investment in shares of entities other than subsidiaries, which have been measured at fair value

- Staff loans provided at subsidized interest rate, which have been measured at amortized cost.

- Other long term liabilities (leave liability), which has been measured at present value of the
obligation.

2.1.3. Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgements. It also requires
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies.
The company makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and
judgements are continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future,
actual result may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are:

a) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the
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assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including
relative efficiency and operating costs.

b) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future
cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices, market demand
and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent
changes to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact on the carrying value
of assets.

c) Recognition of Deferred Tax

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control
of the Company.

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a known future tax rate 21.25% (Previous Year
21.25%). Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred
tax assets where the management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

d) Other long term employee benefits

Significant judgement is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on part of
unused/accumulated leave by the staff and which is generally paid out on retirement or termination
of employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified actuary using assumption like interest rate,
rate of increase in annual compensation, remaining service period etc. Factors considered may change
depending on market changes or legal changes which are beyond the control of the company.

2.1.4. Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is also the
company’s functional currency.

2.2. Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out
below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates. The areas
where significant judgements and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements and
their effects are disclosed in relevant areas.

2.2.1. Standalone financial statements

This financial statement is the standalone financial statement of the company. Consolidated financial
statement as per NFRS 10 is prepared separately.
2.2.2 Associates

Profits or losses arising on transactions between the company and its associates are recognized only to
the extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate. The investor's share in the associate's profits
and losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the company's share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalized and included in the carrying amount of the
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associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

2.2.3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
i) Recognition

The company initially recognizes financial assets on trade date which is the date on which the company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, or an item not at fair value
through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and Measurement
Financial Assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed (the entity’s
business model) and their contractual cash-flows characteristics. These factors determine whether
the financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCT) or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL’).

— At amortized cost: Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments for which the Company has intent and ability to hold till maturity. They
are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to
initial recognition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate
method less any impairment losses.

— At fair value through profit or loss: Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or
loss if the company manages such instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on
its fair value. Attributable transaction costs and changes in fair value are taken to revenue.

— At fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets at FVOCI are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified in any of the above category. Financial assets at FVOCI are
recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets are measured at fair value, as far as such fair value is available, and
changes therein, which are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair
value reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognized, gain or loss accumulated in equity is
reclassified to retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
financial liabilities are measured at amortized costs using effective interest rate method.

iii. Derecognition

Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the
financial assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfer nor retains substantially all of the risk and rewards of the
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new assets obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is recognized in retained
earnings.

Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or

cancelled or expired.
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iv. Offsetting

The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when and only when, the Company has a legal right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Amortized cost measurement

The 'amortized cost' of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset
or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between initial amount
recognized and the maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.

vi. Fair value measurement

Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm’s length transaction. Quoted market values
represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an organized and liquid market. Where
quoted market values are not available, fair values are estimated by other techniques.

vii. Identification and measurement of impairment
Financial assets

At each reporting date the Company assesses the objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired or not. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor

- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency by a debtor

- observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
debtor

The amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and amount the
management considers it as recoverable on the basis of financial position of the party and appropriate
estimation made by the management. Receivables considered as less likely to be received are provided
allowance for loss and charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.

In addition, for an investment in an unquoted equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its
net worth is objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and reflected in an allowance account
against debtors. Impairment losses on equity investment are routed through Statement of OCI. Interest
on the impaired assets continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. If an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then
the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through income statement (OCI in case of available for sale
investment).

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity investments increases and the increase can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the impairing
loss is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any increase in fair value is recognized through OCI.

2.2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
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which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less cost and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss. Provisions against impairment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates. Impairment charges are included in profit or loss except to the extent they
reverse gains previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

2.2.5 Foreign Currency

Transactions entered into by the company entities in a currency other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the "functional currency" is Rs.) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled
monetary assets and liabilities are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

2.2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price
and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable
costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow in to the Company. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
component/ part has cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful
lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress (CWIP).
At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences.

Salvage Value

Company has assessed the salvage value of all its property, plant and equipment to be 5% of its original
cost.

Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until
they are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant and
equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.

Management of the company has assessed useful life of the following category of assets as mentioned.
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Category of Assets Estimated useful life
Building 35 - 70 years

Other civil structures 20 - 35 years

Plant and machinery 10 - 30 years

Vehicle 10 - 20 years
Computer and accessories 7 years

Office Equipment 10 years

Furniture, fixture and furnishing 10 years

Leasehold Development 3 years

2.2.7 Intangible Assets
Computer Software
Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the software. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives.

2.2.8 Investment Property

The Company holds certain assets (land and building) for purpose other than its core operating function.
Such assets are classified as investment property.

Items of investment property are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of
dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow in to the company. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following a change in
its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item and its fair
value is recognized directly in equity if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item, the gain is transferred to
retained earnings. Any loss is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Incomes arising from use of investment property by third parties are recognized as lease income from
operating lease. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is
booked as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight
line method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

Salvage Value
Company has assessed the salvage value of its depreciable investment property to be 5% of its original
cost.

Depreciation
Land that form part of investment property is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on other items
of investment property so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.

Depreciable investment properties are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management considered the useful life of investment property to be of 55 years.
2.2.9 Investments

Investments in shares of the companies are classified as either at amortized cost or at fair value. The
classification of investment and its subsequent measurement is dependent on the business model for
managing such investments and contractual cash flow characteristics.

Investments are measured at fair value unless measured at amortized cost. Investments are measured at
amortized cost if such investment is held with in order to collect contractual cash flows and contractual
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terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent changes in the investments measured at amortized cost are charged to Profit or Loss.
Investments measured at fair value opting the routing through Other Comprehensive Income, at initial
recognition, for adjusting the changes in fair value are charged through Other Comprehensive Income
that forms part of the equity of the Company. Changes in fair value of other investments are charged to
Profit or Loss.

2.2.10 Inventories

Stock of food, beverages, store and operating supplies are initially recognized at cost and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the variable selling expenses.

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred directly in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition.

2.2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and other short term highly liquid
investments. For the purpose, any cash placement deposits, call deposit or other highly liquid items with
the maturity period of 90 days from the date of transaction is considered as cash equivalent.

2.2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at transaction value less allowance for impairment.

Staff loan are measured at amortized cost. Discounting rate has been arrived by considering comparable
market rates of similar types of loan. Difference of amortized value and book value of loan is charged to
profit or loss for the period of staff loan.

2.2.13 Share capital
Financial instruments issued by the company are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The company’s equity shares are classified
as equity instruments.

2.2.14 Employee Benefits
Employee benefits are either defined benefit plan or defined contribution plan. Employee benefits of the
company comprise of gratuity, provident fund and accumulated leave. These benefits are provided as
per the Employee Service Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreement between Employee Union and
the Company.

Provident Fund-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays pre-defined provident fund benefit to Social Security Fund (SSF) and the company
does not have any legal or constructive obligation to pay additional amount in future. Contributions to
Provident fund are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

Gratuity-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company is required to pay pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund as gratuity to employees.
The Company accrues 8.33% of basic salary of staff as gratuity benefits in accordance with Labor Law
of Nepal and the Company has deposited Employee Gratuity in SSF. The amount presented in financial
statements is the actual liability of gratuity at each reporting date.

Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
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amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Accumulated leaves, encashment of which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the
present value of the obligation as at the reporting date determined based on an actuarial valuation.

2.2.15 Income Tax

Deferred Tax

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected realization or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates that are expected to apply in
subsequent periods.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax is calculated
reasonably in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act as per management assumption and bet
judgement.

General corporate tax rate is 25%. The Company is entitled to a rebate of 15% on the General tax rate as
per the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058. Accordingly, tax rate applicable to the company for current
fiscal year is 21.25% (previous year rate was 10.63%).

2.2.16 Revenue

Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the Company
and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of Value Added Taxes, Civil
Aviation Fee and Service Charges where applicable.

Revenue from Sale of Services

Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of services and is stated net of Value Added Tax (VAT) and
Service Charges. Revenue from The Soaltee Gate Gourmet -Flight Catering Division sales is stated net of
Civil Aviation Fee & Service charge.

Revenue from package sales is disclosed net of credits and refunds, included as part of the package.

Service Charge

Income from service charges is recognized on accrual basis net of contribution to be made to the Hotel
Association Nepal (HAN) and the Employees as per Labour Rules as per the previous agreement between
HAN and representatives of the Employees Union till 26 January 2023.

Dividend
Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the right to receive the payment is
established.

Other Income

Other income are recognized on accrual basis when there are reasonable basis to ascertain the amount
and there is reasonable basis for recoverability except for certain membership fees which are insignificant
to the total revenue.
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2.2.17 Expenses
Expenses are accounted on accrual basis where there are reasonable basis to estimate ascertain the
obligation and rationality of such obligation.

License Fee

License fees payable in relation to technical assistance to Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte. Ltd, to operate the
Flight Catering Unit under the brand name of ‘The Soaltee Gate Gourmet’ is based on a fixed percentage
of the Net Sales Value as specified in the Technical Assistance Agreement.

Employee Bonus
Employee bonus is provided in line with the provisions of Bonus Act 2030 BS.

2.2.18 Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. For arrangements
entered into prior to 1 Shrawan 2074 the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain
lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement for use of property at The Soaltee Gate
Gourmet. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked
as operating lease expenses, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight line
method, in line with para 33 of NAS 17: Leases.

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use its facilities and infrastructures
to third parties. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is
booked as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight
line method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

2.2.19 Provisions
The Company applies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in accounting for
non-financial liabilities.

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is more
likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation, which can be
reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated costs when an obligation exists.

2.2.20 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company classifies an asset as current when it is:
- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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2.2.21

2.2.22

2.2.23

The Company classifies a liability as current when:

* It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
¢ It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Segment Reporting

The Company’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Company's
management, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments. All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm's length basis, with
intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated centrally. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining business segment performance.

Government Grant

Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, is recognized when there is reasonable
assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to grant and the grants will
be received. Government grants is recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods
in which the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to

compensate.

Operating Cycle

The Company considers its operating cycle to be of 12 months.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.2: Intangible Assets Amount in Rs.

Particulars Software Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2078 14,937,654 14,937,654
Addition - -
Disposal/Transfer - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 14,937,654 14,937,654
Addition - -
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2080 14,937,654 14,937,654
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2078 13,731,316 13,731,316
Charge for the year 402,242 402,242
Disposal - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 14,133,558 14,133,558
Charge for the year 377,242 377,242
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2080 14,510,800 14,510,800
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2078 1,206,338 1,206,338
At 32.03.2079 804,096 804,096
At 31.03.2080 426,854 426,854
Note 3.3: Investment Property
Amount in Rs.
Particulars Freehold Land Building Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2078 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal/Transfer - - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2080 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2078 - 79,698,359 79,698,359
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 - 81,677,482 81,677,482
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2080 - 83,656,605 83,656,605
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2078 4,707,287 86,448,453 91,155,741
At 32.03.2079 4,707,287 84,469,330 89,176,618
At 31.03.2080 4,707,287 82,490,207 87,197,495
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.4: Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using known future tax rate effective to the Company 21.25%
(Previous Year 21.25%). Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to
deferred tax assets where the management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 01.04.2079 Credit/(Charge) to SOPL | Credit/(Charge) to OCI 31.03.2080
Fixed Assets (53,303,422 (8,967,2006) (62,270,628)
Gratuity Provision 16,203,871 (1,194,073) 15,009,798
Provision for Leave 10,406,635 1,557,059 11,963,694
Trade and Other Receivable 9,906,178 1,062,500 10,968,678
Total (16,786,738) (7,541,720) (24,328,458)
Particulars 01.04.2078 Credit/(Charge) to SOPL Credit/(Charge) to OCI 32.03.2079
Fixed Assets (45,629,725) (7,673,697) (53,303,422)
Gratuity Provision 24,334,467 (8,130,596) 16,203,871
Provision for Leave 13,592,896 (3,186,261) 10,406,635
Trade and Other Receivable 8,843,678 1,062,500 9,906,178
Total 1,141,316 (17,928,054) (16,786,738)
Note 3.5: Investments .
Amount in Rs.
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Non-Current
At Amortized Cost
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
At Fair Value Through OCI 275,487,563 290,689,670
Total 275,487,563 290,689,670
Current
At Amortized Cost - -
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
At Fair Value Through OCI - -
Total - -
Investment comprises the following:
At Amortized Cost (A) 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Term Deposit - -
Total Investment at Amortized Cost - -
At Fair Value Through OCI (B)
Investment in Subsidiaries
H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. (99,500 shares of Rs. 100 each, B 16.906.928
35,136 shares of Rs. 100 each at Premium of Rs. 98 each) ’ ’
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. (2,500,000 shares of Rs. 100 each) 250,000,000 250,000,000
Advance for Investment in Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 12,640,000 12,640,000
Sub-Total 262,640,000 279,546,928
Investment in Other Entities
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. (100,000 shares of Rs. 100 each) 12,847,563 11,142,742
Sub-Total 12,847,563 11,142,742
Total Investment through OCI 275,487,563 290,689,670
Proportion of voting rights
H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. - 99.63%
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 100% 100%
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 5.97% 5.97%

Additional Information of Investments is provided in Note 4.20.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.6: Trade and Other Receivable

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Non-Current
Other Receivable 7,051,419 7,051,419
Deposit for Appeal 9,299,783 4,454,681
Deposits 7,065,592 4,338,095
Loans and Advances to Employees 6,982,735 18,921,585
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 41,304 1,228,540
Total 30,440,833 35,994,320
Less: Allowance for Impairment (7,051,419) (7,051,419)
Total 23,389,414 28,942,901
Current
Trade Receivable
Trade Receivable 266,725,614 248,716,457
Less: Allowance for Impairment (44,565,887) (39,565,887)
Trade Receivable-Net 222,159,727 209,150,570
Other Receivable
Loans and Advances to Employees 13,814,856 11,634,470
Loans and Advances to Other 28,209,222 34,177,783
Advances to Contractor and Suppliers 54,267,965 18,939,147
VAT Recoverable 3,089,678 1,959,002
Management Fees Recoverable 4,036,281 4,036,281
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 265,776 1,095,683
Total Other Receivable 103,683,778 71,842,366
Total 325,843,505 280,992,936

Additional information on Other receivable included in non-current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.1. Trade

receivables are normally collected as per credit terms with the parties, generally within a period of 90 days. Trade

receivable is non-interest bearing. Additional information on Trade Receivable included in Current Receivable is

provided in Note 4.10.2.

Note 3.7: Inventories

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Stores and Spares 21,790,412 12,230,616
Provision, Beverage and Others 37,221,699 23,253,071
Uniform and Linen 42,147,234 35,325,673
Crockery, Cutlery etc. 21,044,174 14,134,600
Total 122,203,519 84,943,960

Note 3.8: Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Cash in Hand 3,889,934 2,766,717
Cheques in Hand 700,000 -
Balances with Bank 64,953,756 29,096,699
Total 69,543,690 31,863,416
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.9: Share Capital

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

31.03.2080

32.03.2079

Authorized Share Capital

150,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,500,000,000 |

1,500,000,000

Issued Share Capital

100,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,000,000,000 |

1,000,000,000

Subscribed and Fully Paid up

88,471,506 Shares of Rs.10/- each 884,715,060 842,579,730
Total 884,715,060 842,579,730
Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Balance at the beginning of the year 84,257,973 84,257,973
Add: Bonus Issue 4,213,533 -
Balance at the end of year 88,471,506 84,257,973
Details of Shareholding
Major Corporate Shareholders 69% 69%
General Shareholders 31% 31%
Note 3.10: Retained Earning and Reserves
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Share Premium 16,000,000 16,000,000
Other Reserve 7,288,761 7,288,761
Revaluation Reserve 35,198,427 35,198,427
Fair Value Reserve for Equity Investment 2,847,563 1,142,742
Retained Earnings 1,160,362,926 827,114,838
Total 1,221,697,677 886,744,768
Note 3.11: Loans and Borrowings
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Non-Current
Secured- Hire Purchase 7,931,571 9,170,921
Total 7,931,571 9,170,921
Current
Overdraft and Working Capital Loan - 51,611,159
Current Portion of Hire Purchase Loan 1,308,207 2,209,515
Total 1,308,207 53,820,674
Note 3.12: Employee Benefits
Particulars 31.03.2080 | 32.03.2079
Non-Current
Gratuity 70,634,343 76,253,510
Less: Plan Assets (1,259,866) (2,253,240)
Net Gratuity Liability 69,374,477 74,000,270
Accumulated Leave 56,299,735 48,972,399
Total 125,674,212 122,972,669
Current
Salary and Wages Payable 13,028,397 11,250,076
Bonus Payable 68,712,943 31,517,125
Total 81,741,340 42,767,201
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.13: Income Tax Receivable/(Payable)

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Advance Income Tax 109,724,626 33,536,069
Income Tax Liability (124,608,113) -
Total (14,883,487) 33,536,069
Note 3.14: Trade and Other Payable
Particulars 31.03.2080 | 32.03.2079
Non-Current
Retention and Security Deposit 15,159,071 11,679,331
Advances Received 48,947,939 52,860,983
Unclaimed Dividend 13,539,009 10,514,616
Total 77,646,019 75,054,930
Current
Sundry Creditors 236,545,187 | 220,263,657
Other Payable
Advances Received 34,999,574 34,999,574
Civil Aviation Fee - 394,695
Flight Kitchen Franchise Fee 1,148,430 6,487,466
Service Charge 12,102,566 54,648,520
Housing Fund 26,334,029 26,334,029
Corporate Social Responsibility 8,431,238 10,189,783
Other Liabilities 68,282,678 46,517,786
Total 387,843,702 399,835,510
Trade and other payable are non-interest bearing in nature.
Note 3.15: Revenue from Operation
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Room 551,094,425 246,990,610
Food 1,496,892,775 972,822,567
Beverage 104,935,519 70,835,073
Cigar and Cigarettes 1,497,714 658,625
Telephone 10,026 11,201
Laundry Income 1,779,057 1,229,505
Business Centre 7,105 13,725
Total 2,156,216,621 1,292,561,306
Note 3.16: Other Income
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Premises Rental Charge 36,463,978 26,126,938
Interest on Loans & Advances at Amortized Cost 1,108,581 1,765,522
Interest on Call Account/Time Deposit 147,395 133,166
Miscellaneous Receipts 10,644,900 6,253,092
Income from Service Charge 21,403,302 25,267,588
Dividend Income 19,271,347 1,222,517
Profit on Sale of Assets 4,506,502 3,110,365
Profit on Sale of Investment - 9,170,962
Exchange Gain 2,548,345 2,124,666
Reversal of Provision for Gratuity 2,315,290 -
Reversal of Provision for Leave - 1,143,502
Unclaimed Balance Written Back - 244,415
Total 98,409,640 76,562,733
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.17: Consumption of Food and Beverage

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Food 350,648,786 241,240,023
Beverage 28,830,695 18,544,340
Cigarettes 603,925 407,685
Total 380,083,406 260,192,048
Note 3.18: Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Salary and Wages 250,363,992 159,441,674
Allowances 69,270,703 49,102,514
Festival Allowance 13,042,251 -
Overtime 8,510,124 1,709,000
Employees Meal 42,212,553 21,731,259
Soaltee Staff Welfare 2,468,229 2,496,617
Gratuity 13,593,805 10,188,080
Leave 11,095,599 -
Provident Fund 16,315,871 11,894,843
Clinic Expenses 2,806,557 2,025,427
Amortization of Staff Loan - 1,188,456
Incentive Exit Scheme 3,975,504 32,099,623
Bonus 68,712,943 31,517,125
Total 502,368,131 323,394,618
Additional information on Gratuity is provided in Note 4.4.a.
Note 3.19: Operating Expenses
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Linen 11,354,900 5,740,121
Laundry Supplies 37,871,510 19,521,677
Crockery & Cutlery 3,913,305 2,422,010
Silverware 529,198 220,150
Cleaning Supplies 14,245,204 7,714,558
F & B Paper Supplies 17,328,664 10,311,020
Guest Supplies 32,244,290 12,919,885
Water & Water Treatment 10,413,839 16,115,702
Garden Maintenance 1,692,064 2,103,112
Pest Control 2,496,000 2,588,000
Waste Removal 1,243,300 823,100
Power and Fuel 115,138,899 91,558,812
Repair and Maintenance 36,928,650 24,713,592
Total 285,399,823 196,751,739
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.20: Other Expenses

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Rental Charges 10,367,981 7,277,087
Travelling 24,778,318 7,715,747
Transport and Conveyance 34,364,718 18,575,916
Audit Fee 605,000 550,000
Legal and Professional Fees 9,303,004 10,750,454
Directors' Meeting Fees 1,494,123 423,528
Licence & Taxes 33,879,627 19,713,693
Bank Charges 8,794,279 4,809,477
Annual General Meeting Expenses 970,145 662,555
Commissions 16,110,637 3,208,662
Insurance 10,071,617 7,985,808
Communication Expenses 5,452,574 4,350,466
Printing and Stationery 7,551,309 4,833,654
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 16,795,825 9,349,531
Marketing and Reservation Expenses 7,717,702 4,210,684
Training and Conference 1,683,173 1,900,800
Books and Newspaper 186,937 92,282
Membership & Subscription 2,281,856 2,175,432
Security Services 15,204,998 9,760,149
Uniform Expenses 7,340,730 6,274,728
Entertainment 4,536,967 785,959
Allowance for Impairment 5,000,061 5,000,000
Software Service Charges 6,501,297 5,536,344
Investment Written Off 3,443,328 -
Banquet Expenses 9,421,467 2,570,683
Kitchenette Expenses 7,870,198 4,314,205
Corporate Social Responsibility 5,549,796 2,972,432
Miscellaneous 20,065,898 8,914,837
Total 277,343,565 154,715,113

Note 3.21: Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by
weighted average number of equity shares for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. If the number of
ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a capitalization, bonus issue or share
split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for
all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per shall has been done as stated above.

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79

Basic Earnings per Share

Profit/(Loss) for the year 554,979,595 297,243,195
Number of shares 88,471,506 88,471,506
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) 6.27 3.36
Diluted Earnings per Share

Profit for the year 554,979,595 297,243,195
Weighted average number of shares 88,471,506 88,471,506
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) 6.27 3.36
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.22: Financial Instruments Classification and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments are classified in accordance with Note 2.2.3.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair values are determined according to the following

hierarchy:

The Company has used fair value model for measurement of its financial assets and financial liabilities. Fair
value hierarchy levels presented represent the available inputs considered to arriving at the fair value of category
of financial assets/liabilities.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The Company has used its own data (accounting
value) and considered if there exists factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book value of assets

or liabilities.

Amount in Rs.

As at 31.03.2080 Carrying Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 348,925,839 348,925,839
Investment - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 69,543,690 69,543,690
Total At Amortized Cost 418,469,529 418,469,529
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 275,487,563 275,487,563
Total Financial Assets 693,957,092 - - 693,957,092
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 465,489,721 465,489,721
Loans and Borrowings 9,239,778 9,239,778
Total Financial Liabilities 474,729,499 - - 474,729,499

As at 32.03.2079 Carrying Amount | Level 1 | Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 307,611,614 307,611,614
Investment - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 31,863,416 31,863,416
Total At Amortized Cost 339,475,030 339,475,030
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 290,689,670 | 290,689,670
Total Financial Assets 630,164,700 | -| - 630,164,700
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 474,890,440 474,890,440
Loans and Borrowings 62,991,595 62,991,595
Total Financial Liabilities 537,882,035 - - 537,882,035
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Financial Statements

4 Additional Information

4.1 Share Capital

The Company has single class of equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 per share. Every member
holding equity shares therein shall have voting rights in proportion to the member’s share of the paid
up equity share capital.

4.2 Dividend
Dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by shareholders in the Annual General

Meeting.

Board of Directors have proposed 5% bonus shares and 26.57894737% cash dividend for the year
2079-80 (previous year 5% bonus shares and 21.31578947% cash dividend). Accordingly, the total
distribution by the Company from the profits arising from 2079-80 is as follows:

Particulars Bonus Shares Cash Dividend
Proposed for 2079-80 44,235,753 235,147,950
Number of shares 4,423,575

Paid for 2078-79 (Amount) 42,135,330 179,602,521
No. of shares 4,213,533

4.3 Reserves and Retained Earnings

a. Share premium
The Company had issued shares in premium on 1992-93. The amount collected by the company
in excess of its face value is credited to this account. Use of share premium shall be as provided in
Company Act 2063.

b. Other Reserves
The Company had created other reserves out of capital profits on 1995. There is no movement on
this reserve since then.

c. Retained Earning
Net profit for each year is added to this reserve. Company uses this to provide dividend to its
shareholders.

d. Fair Value Reserve
This reserve is created to account for changes in fair value of investments for those investments that
are opted to be measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

e. Revaluation Reserve

Revaluation Reserve was created in 1986 when the land of the company was revalued. For the first
time adoption of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074), the revalued amount of land has been considered at
deemed cost which as allowed by NFRS 1 and accordingly, this reserve has remain intact.

4.4 Employee Benefits
a. Gratuity

Up to 19 Bhadra 2074, gratuity was in the form of defined benefit liability in which Company was
required to pay gratuity to staff considering the number of years in service and the recent salary
of the staff. Changes in Labour laws has changed the nature of gratuity and this is now a defined
contribution plan whereby Company is required to provide 8.33% of monthly basic remuneration
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as gratuity to employee with effect from 19 Bhadra 2074. The Company has enrolled itself and

it’s employees in Social Security Fund (SSF) in Chaitra 2076 and thereafter it has started making

contribution towards Employee Gratuity in the fund.

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Opening Liability 76,253,510 114,515,139
Payment Made (3,303,876) (38,261,629
Expenses Booked 13,593,805 10,188,080
Reversal of Excess Provision (2,315,291) -
Deposited in SSF (13,593,805) (10,188,080)
Closing Liability 70,634,343 76,253,510

b. Leave

Leave is classified as other long term employee liability. Liability is measured by way of actuarial

valuation for accumulated leave balance at the end of reporting periods. Changes in value of liability

is as follows:

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Opening Liability 48,972,399 63,966,570
Service Cost 8,229,115 9,058,131
Interest Cost 4,022,294 4,858,469
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (1,152,677) (15,060,102)
Benefit Paid (3,771,396) (13,850,669)
Closing Liability (A) 56,299,735 48,972,399
Liability recognized in the financial statements (B) 56,299,735 48,972,399

Basic assumptions considered for measurement of leave liability related to leave are as

follows:

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Discount Rate 8.50% 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase 6% 6%
Average expected future service 14 13
Average duration of liabilities 10 10

Plan assets have not been created for funding of payment of leave liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% increase in discount rate considered for calculating

the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Effect on:
- Service Cost (912,634) (1,141,698)
- Interest Cost 473,209 571,583
- Leave Liability (10,883,442) (10,229,102)

lating the present value of long term leave liability.

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% decrease in discount rate cons

idered for calcu-

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Effect on:
- Service Cost 1,109,033 1,390,162
- Interest Cost (473,209) (571,583)
- Leave Liability 13,101,212 12,348,982
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4.5 Lease

The Company has entered into a lease arrangement of premises for a period of 2-3 years. The future

minimum lease rental payment to be made is as follows:

Period 2079-80 2078-79
Up to one year 13,012,097 7,487,713
One to five years 11,185,354 5,633,377
Total 24,197,451 13,121,090

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use some part of its assets on lease.

Minimum lease amount receivable under such lease is as follows:

Period 2079-80 2078-79
Up to one year 37,607,133 33,831,520
One to five years 291,633,300 255,970,344
Above five years 172,386,540 50,406,757
Total 501,626,973 340,208,621

4.6 Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year, the Company has provided Rs. 5.55 million (previous year Rs. 2.97 million) (1% of net
profit after tax) as Corporate Social Responsibility as per the Section 54 (1) of the Industrial Enterprises
Act 2076.

4.7 Risk Management objectives and policies

The Company’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments. The Company’s Board and senior management has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management. The Company’s risk management
policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

i. Market Risk

In spite of having a very high potentiality of Tourism Sector and its related to services, it is volatile
to geopolitical and domestic incidents. With stabilization in the geopolitical and domestic issues,
the tourism sector looks for bright future. However, there is risk that any domestic/international or
geopolitical incidents would impact the business of the company. However, the company through
years of operations has sustained through such risks over the years in the past.

ii. Credit Risk

The company provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does it enjoy credit facility
from its creditors as well. In impact on tourism sector may have impact of company debtors’ ability
to pay the company within reasonable credit period allowed. Accordingly, there exist the credit risks
to that extent. The company through its experience over the many years has been managing such
risk well through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the regular recoverability position
by the management and the Board.

iii. Liquidity Risk
The Company has very less amount of debt funding and will not be impacted significantly. The

Company monitors its liquidity position on regular basis through effective planning and forecasting.

The company current assets aggregate positively against the current liabilities and accordingly, the
liquidity risk or risk that the company may not be able to settle its liabilities as they become, due
does not exist.
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iv. Operational Risk

The Company has been in operation since more than 56 years and have prepared and implemented
various Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) in the form of clear cut delegation of authority for the
activities, guidelines regulations etc. Beside the company is required to also follow specific operating
guidelines issued by its franchise. Company believes that the controls implemented by the company
have minimized the operational risk to acceptably low level. The franchise also carries out Control
Self-Assessment at reasonable interval where the company scored high level marks placing it as one
among better managed hotel among hotels being managed by Franchise.

v. Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

The Company’s revenue will be impacted coming from any fluctuation of exchange rate fluctuation so
be on the certain level of supplies of the company as such exchange rate fluctuation will contribute
certain level of inflations. Since its tariffs are quoted in USD, any rate fluctuation will have the risk of
impacting the income of the company. It has been the tendency that the exchange rate fluctuation has
generally been upward movement except of occasional down turn movement as well. The Company
has practiced not to hold foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities for substantial period so
as to minimize the risk of exchange rate fluctuation.

4.8 Related Party Transactions

Related parties of the company comprise of key management personnel, organization having significant
influence on the company, subsidiaries of the company and Board of Directors.

a. Subsidiary Company

The Company has one subsidiary company. The Company has presence on the Board of this company
in proportion of its shareholding. Company provides office space to the subsidiary on operating
lease. Other than this, there is no any transaction with subsidiary company.

. Holding Rental Charge Outstanding balance
Name of Subsidiary - =
% This Year | Last Year | This Year | Last Year
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 100
Lease Rental Income 66,667 66,667 - -

b. Significant Influence
Entities having significant influence over the Company is as follows:

i. Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. (SEPL)

Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. is major shareholder of the company. This company has four
representatives in the current Board of Soaltee Hotel Ltd. (SHL). SEPL has paid Rs. 66,667
(previous year Rs. 66,667) to SHL as operating lease rent. SHL has paid Rs. 1,102,500 to SEPL as
operating lease rent. There is no outstanding balance at the year end.
c. Other related entities
i. Nepal Airlines Corporation (NAC)

Nepal Airlines Corporation is institutional shareholder of the company. NAC has one representative
in the Board of SHL.

SHL provides flight catering services to the international flights of Nepal Airlines Corporation.
Transactions and outstanding balance with Nepal Airlines Corporation are as follows:

Revenue (in million) Receivable (in million)

Particulars

This Year

Last Year

This Year

Last Year

Flight Catering Services

274.49

188.21

50.44

43.23
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ii. Sibkrim Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
There is no transaction of this company with SHL.

d. Those charged with Governance

Those charged with governance include the Board of Directors of the Company. The composition of
Board on the reporting date is as follows:

Name Position Representative of
Mr. Dinesh Bahadur Bista Executive Chairman Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ravi Bhakta Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Rajesh Kazi Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mrs. Jaya Rajya Laxmi Shah Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ubaraj Adhikari Director Nepal Airlines Corporation
Mr. Prakash Bikram Khatri Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Sashi Raj Pandey Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Tibrewala Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Deepak Raj Joshi Director Independent Director

Mr. Lil Bahadur Khatri serves as Company Secretary of the Company.

Board members are paid Rs. 25,000 (net of withholding tax) per meeting as meeting fee for attending each
meeting of Board. Meeting fee paid to members of Board for Board as well as Other Committee meetings
during the year amounts to Rs. 1.49 million (previous year Rs. 0.40 million).

e. Key Management Personnel
The company’s key management personnel are Executive Chairman & Vice President of SHL and General
Manager of The Soaltee Kathmandu.

Total compensation to key management personnel during the year is Rs. 31.84 million (previous year Rs.
16.48 million). The compensation paid to Executive Chairman also includes the performance incentive
paid based on the profit of the Company.

4.9 Unpaid Dividend

Total unpaid dividend amounted to Rs. 13.54 million (previous year Rs. 10.51 million).

4.10 Trade and Other Receivable

4.10.1 Civil Aviation Fee Recoverable from Airlines

Civil Aviation Fees levied on In-flight catering services provided on international flights by the company
to three different airlines have been disputed and not paid by the respective airlines which amounted to
Rs 7.051 million (previous year Rs. 7.051 million) is still pending recovery. This has been reflected under
Non-current Trade and other receivables.

4.10.2 Trade Receivable from Jet Airways

Trade receivable amounting to Rs. 16,061,418 is pending recoverable from Jet Airways as of the reporting
date which has closed its operation from 17 April 2019 and is undergoing its insolvency proceedings.
In October 2020, a revival takeover plan of potential investors has been approved by the Committee of
Creditors of Airlines. The company has already lodged the outstanding with Jet Airways & confirmed
by Jet Airways in their official website as eligible creditors. However, the outcome of the proceeding and
business revival is yet to be known.

4.11 Lien on Company’s Assets

The company current and non-current assets where applicable has been pledged hypothecated to
bankers providing the credit facilities. The credit facility as of the reporting date included term loan and
overdraft against a vehicle, movable and immovable properties amounting to Rs. 9.24 million (previous
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year Rs. 62.99 million).

4.12 Contingent Liability

The Company recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity or company as a present obligation as a result
of past events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate reflection in the
current financial year.

4.13 Bank Guarantee

Unexpired bank guarantee issued by the company amounted to Rs. 26.04 million (previous year Rs.
12.52 million).

4.14 Litigations or Legal Cases

i. Income Tax Matters

Appeal Revenue Tribunal Fiscal Year 2068-69

The Inland Revenue Department has filed an appeal to review the verdict of the Revenue Tribunal
in the Honorable Supreme Court for the Fiscal Year 2068-69 which had ruled in favor of the
Company. The Honorable Supreme Court issued its final verdict in favor of the Company during
this fiscal year. The Supreme Court upheld the Revenue Tribunal’s verdict and dismissed the
appeal by the Inland Revenue Department. The full text of the verdict of the Supreme Court is
yet to be received after publication by the Supreme Court at a later date.

Appeal Revenue Tribunal Fiscal Year 2071-72

The Revenue Tribunal has issued a verdict in favor of the Company regarding the appeal for
Review relating to the assessment for Fiscal Year 2071-72. Despite the requirement, the Inland
Revenue Department has not yet conducted a reassessment in accordance with the Revenue
Tribunal’s decision. However, there would not be a significant obligation to the Company relating
to Fiscal Year 2071-72. It is not expected that there will be a significant financial obligation for
the Company concerning Fiscal Year 2071-72.

ii. Income Tax Assessment Status

The Company has appealed to Revenue Tribunal challenging the disallowance of expenses on
Self-Assessment Income Tax Return for the FY 2072-73, 2073-74 and 2074-75. The appeals
arise due to an additional income tax demand/claim of Rs. 2,413,333, Rs. 4,810,246 and Rs.
2,059,478 respectively as assessed by the Large Taxpayers Office during their administrative
review. The Company’s management believes that it should not incur a significant financial
obligation to the Company due to these tax claims. If any tax claim does arise, such charges
would be directly charged to Company’s accumulated profit, in accordance with past practice.

Additionally, the Company has also submitted an appeal to Inland Revenue Department for
Administrative Review, challenging the disallowance of expenses on Self-Assessment Income Tax
Return of the FY 2075-76. This appeal is in response to an additional tax demand of Rs. 2,059,478
made by Large Taxpayers Office during their administrative review. The management does not
anticipate a significant financial obligation arising from this claim, and any such obligation will
be directly charged to accumulated profit, consistent with the Company’s established practice.

iii. Arbitration Suit

“The Company had filed a Writ Petition in the Honorable High Court Patan on the issue of
Outstanding Receivable recovery pending settlement by the then Hotel Manager, Holiday Inns
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(China) Ltd (Manager) seeking the court’s assistance for appointment of an arbitrator on behalf of
Holiday Inns as they did not appoint their arbitrator. The High Court has appointed an arbitrator
on behalf of Holiday Inns (China) Ltd. However, Holiday Inns (China) Ltd has challenged the
appointment in the Supreme Court of Nepal stating that they have already appointed their
arbitrator. The matter is sub-judiced in the Supreme Court.

Holiday Inns had requested the Permanent Court of Arbitration, Hague to appoint a third
arbitrator or appoint an appointing authority to appoint a third arbitrator under UNCITRAL
Rules of Arbitration. On their request, the Permanent Court of Arbitration has appointed the
Singapore International Arbitration Centre (SIAC) as the appointing authority. The Company has
challenged the appointment of SIAC as the appointing authority and the matter is also pending
at the Supreme Court.”

iv. Casino Royalty of the Closed down period
The Company had filed the writ petitions in the Honorable Supreme Court of Nepal against the
Government of Nepal’s demand for Casino Royalty for the period in which the casino was not
in operation from Shrawan 2068 to Kartik 2069 due to the cancellation of Nepal Recreation
Centre’s Casino Operation permission. The Supreme Court has dismissed the writ. However, the
Company has not yet received the full text of the verdict from the Honorable Supreme Court of
Nepal.

v. Legal cases

The company has filed a few other cases to recover dues from some debtors and other parties in
the course of its regular business.

4.15 Capital Commitment

Capital contract remaining to be executed on capital accounts net of advances to Rs. 175.33 million
(Previous year Rs. 160.15 million).

4.16 Letter of Credit
There is no outstanding letter of credit as at the reporting date.
4.17 Housing Fund

This fund was created as per the requirement of erstwhile Labor laws. Owing to changes in Labor law,
this fund is no longer required and no provision has been made. The Company has not paid during the
year out of this fund to a separate entity called Employee Housing.

4.18 Operating Segment
Management of the company has considered the total operation to be segregable into three operating

segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered.

i. Core hotel business: The operation of hotel that includes sale of rooms, food, related recreational facilities
etc. that is directly linked to operation of hotel is considered as major segment.

ii. Flight catering: The Flight Catering Division of the Company provides flight catering services to airlines.
This is different nature to the core operating nature of the company, which is operation of hotel and
related facilities to meet its standards.

iii. Horizon Lounge: Horizon Lounge Unit provides airport lounge services to the travelers at Tribhuwan
International Airport (TIA).
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The financial information about the identified segments are as follows: (Amount in millions)
Operating Segment o Hotel Flight Catering Ll Total
peration Lounge
Revenue
- Food 674.18 715.49 107.22 1,496.89
- Room 551.09 551.09
- Beverage 62.44 11.95 30.55 104.94
- Others 3.29 3.29
Interest Income 1.26 1.26
Other Income 97.15 97.15
Total Revenue 1,389.42 727.44 137.77 2,254.63
Expenses*
Consumption Cost 234.22 122.63 23.23 380.08
Employee Benefit Expenses 309.59 162.08 30.70 502.37
Management, Operating and Other Expenses 346.78 181.57 34.39 562.74
Depreciation and Amortization 101.86 4.51 7.27 113.64
Finance Cost 8.66 8.66
Total Expenses 1,001.12 470.79 95.59 1,567.50
Segment Result 388.30 256.65 42.18 687.13
Income Tax 132.15
Profit/(Loss) for the Period 554.98
Segment Assets 2,597.92 197.66 32.19 2,827.77
Segment Liabilities** 2,827.77
* Directly associated and identifiable segment cost has been reported on actual basis while common segment costs are
allocated based on ratio of segment revenue.
**  Segment wise liabilities have not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of segment liability.
4.19 Capital Management
Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company.
The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the company is based on management’s
judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic needs. We consider
the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
The Company’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient
capital management. The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a
focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The Company’s focus is on keeping strong total equity base to
ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if
required, without impacting the risk profile of the Company. The Company’s will take appropriate steps
in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the return
on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company’s goal is to continue to be able
to return excess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during all the years
reported in this financial statement.
4.20 Liquidation of Subsidiary Company
During the Period, the Subsidiary Company H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. has been liquidated
on 20 February 2023. The Company had received Rs. 18,171,347 as dividend (net of tax) and Rs.
13,463,600 as repayment of Share Capital. The balance amount Share Premium on Investment of Rs.
3,443,328 has been written off.
4.21 Regrouping and Round off

Figures have been regrouped and rearranged and rounded off to nearest rupee. Insignificant rounding

D

off differences may exist.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Shareholders of
Soaltee Hotel Limited (Group)

Opinion:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Soaltee Hotel Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise of Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31,
2080 (July 16, 2023), Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
consolidated financial statements, read together with significant accounting policies and notes to the
accounts forming part of the accounts, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Group as on Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), its financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the "Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements" section of our report. We are independent of The Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidences we have obtained are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. Based on the circumstances and facts of the audit, we
consider following as key audit matters:

S.N. Details of Key Audit Matters | How the matters were addressed in our audit
1 Revenue Recognition

(Refer Note 2.2.16 "Revenue" and Note 3.16 of the financial statements)

Revenue from sale of service (hereinafter | Our audit procedures included the following:

referred to as "Revenue") is recognized at the | ,  agsessed the appropriateness of the Group's

time of delivery of services and it is probable revenue recognition accounting policies in line
that the future economic benefits will flow to with NFRS 15 (Revenue from Contracts with
the Company and that revenue and associated Customers) and testing the accounting of
costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably revenue in books of accounts thereof.

measured and no any performance obligation
is pending with respect to revenue recognized.

B.K. Agrawal & Co. is @ member of Crowe Global, a Swiss verein. Each member firm of Crowe Global is a separate and independeni legal entity. B.K. Agrawal & Co. and its afMiliates are not
responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe Global or any other member of Crowe Global, Crowe Global does not have an ownership or partnership interest in B.K. Agrawal & Co.
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S.N. Details of Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our audit
Revenue is key driver of the business and | ¢ Evaluated the integrity of the Group's general
recorded in complex IT system and information and technology control
environment. Likewise, revenue also includes environment and tested the operating
high number of individual and low value effectiveness of IT application controls over
transaction therefore in respect of services revenue recognition, the detailed process flow
provided there is risk that revenue Is recorded of sales, segregation of duties for the process
inappropriately relative to the provision of the followed, automated steps and manually
underlying service. intervened processes.

Therefore, due to significant risk embedded in | ¢  Performed detailed analysis of Revenue,
revenue we have identified revenue analytical testing with sales information filed
recognition as a Key Audit Matter for the with tax authorities, testing the timing of its
current period. recognition and accuracy of the amounts

recognized and verification of the supporting
information of the Revenue transactions.

e Tested a sample of revenue transactions in
relation to the provision of services, room
sales and assessing them against relevant
supporting documentation/sales contracts to
determine income has been appropriately
recognized.

2 | Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property
(refer Note 2.2.6, 2.2.8, 3.1 and 3.3 of the Financial Statements)

There are areas where management | We assessed the controls in place over the fixed
judgement impacts the carrying value of | asset, evaluated the appropriateness of
property, plant and equipment and investment | capitalization process, performed tests on costs
property and their respective depreciation or | capitalized, the timeliness of the capitalization of
amortization rates. These include the decision | the assets and the derecognition criteria for assets
to capitalize or expense the costs, the annual | retired from active use. In performing these
asset life review: the timeliness of the | procedures, we reviewed the judgments made by
capitalization of assets and the use of | the management including the nature of underlying
management assumptions and estimates for | costs capitalized, impairment, determination of
the determination or the measurement and | realizable value of the assets retired from the
recognition criteria for assets retired from | active use, the appropriateness of useful life of
active use. Due to the materiality in the context | assets. We have observed that the management
of the balance sheet of the gompany and the | has regularly reviewed the aforesaid judgements
leve! of judgment and estimates required, we | and there are no material misstatement of
consider this to be a Key Audit Matter. impairment and capitalization of assets.

Other Information:

The management of the Group are responsible for the other information such as "Report of Board
of Director's/Chairman's Statement" to be presented in the Annual Report and Accounts. Our opinion on the
consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express
any audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated above, any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on audit work done
by us on consolidated financial statement, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements:

The Group’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of each
company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that are operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Member Crowe Global
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In preparing the consolidated financial statement, the respective management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Nepal Standards
on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial information.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of consolidated financial statement, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. We are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors'
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statement,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statement represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be considered to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Member Crowe Global
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Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of one subsidiary, “Soaltee
Hospitality Ltd." whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs.265.81 million and net assets of
Rs.264.98 million as at July 16, 2023 and net profit of Rs.1.50 million and net cash outflows amounting to
Rs.0.26 million for the year then ended. These financial statements and other financial information have been
audited by other auditors who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements. Those reports
have been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements in
so far as it relates to the accounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, are based solely
on the report of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work

done.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
On the basis of our examination, we would like to further report that:

i) We have obtained information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far
as appears from our examination of such books;

ii)  In our opinion, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Consoclidated
Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity attached thereto,
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes & information dealt
with by this report are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2006 and are in
agreement with the books of account maintained by the Group;

iv)  In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the business of the
Group has been conducted satisfactorily; and

v) To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Group necessary for the purposes of the audit, we
have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of the Group
have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed any misappropriation
or caused loss or damage to the Group or committed any accounting fraud in the Group.

B.K. Agrawal, FCA

Managing Partner
Kathmandu For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Date: 17 November, 2023 (1 Mangsir, 2080) Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 231122CA00018wASF5
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. General Information

Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Company or SHL) is a limited liability company registered with Office of
Company Registrar as per erstwhile Company Act. Its shares are enlisted with Security Board of Nepal
(SEBON) and listed and traded at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. (NEPSE). The registered office of the
Company and the principal place of business is located at Tahachal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Since its
incorporation more than 56 years, SHL has been catering the Tourism sector services with five-star
quality hotel facilities and flight catering kitchen since its commercial operation. SHL has invested in
subsidiary company namely Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. for expanding its hotel business. Through Soaltee
Hospitality Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary, it has also invested in Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts
Pvt. Ltd.

SHL owns and operates a luxurious property classified under Five Star category by the Government
of Nepal with business name and brand "The Soaltee Kathmandu" hotel at Tahachal, Kathmandu
Metropolitan City ward No 13, Kathmandu, Nepal. The property (hotel) is owned and operated by the
SHL. The Soaltee Kathmandu has 285 saleable rooms ranging from Deluxe, Club to Suites. Further,
the Company also owns and operates The Soaltee Gate Gourmet, an Inflight Catering Division under a
Technical Assistance Agreement with Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte. Limited, Singapore.

The consolidated financial statements is prepared by consolidating the financial statements of Soaltee
Hotel Limited (the Parent or SHL) and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. (100% subsidiary), collectively stated as
"the Group" hereinafter. The Group's principal activity is to invest in hotel industry. The Group has
invested in hotels in Kathmandu and Nepalgunj.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the meeting of the Board of Directors
on 17 November 2023 (01 Mangsir 2080) and has recommended for approval by shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
2.1. Basis of Preparation
2.1.1. Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) as issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal.

2.1.2. Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for t he
following material items:

- Investment in shares of entities other than subsidiaries, which have been measured at fair value
- Staff loans provided at subsidized interest rate, which have been measured at amortized cost.
- Other long-term liabilities (leave liability), which has been measured at present value of the obligation

2.1.3. Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires
management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The Group
makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and judgments are
continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual result may differ
from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
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causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are:

a) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

Management of each company reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and
equipment in each year. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the
assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including
relative efficiency and operating costs.

b) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted
estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices,
market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors.
Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact
on the carrying value of assets.

c) Recognition of deferred tax

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
beyond the control of the Group.

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a known future tax rate. Deferred tax
assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where
the management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

d) Other long term employee benefits

Significant judgment is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on part of
unused/accumulated leave by the staff and which is generally paid out on retirement or termination
of employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified actuary using assumption like interest rate,
rate of increase in annual compensation, remaining service period etc. Factors considered may
change depending on market changes or legal changes which are beyond the control of the Group.

2.1.4. Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Group’s functional
currency.

2.2. Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
set out below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates. The
areas where significant judgments and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements
and their effects are disclosed in relevant areas.

2.2.1. Basis of Consolidation

Where the Group has the power, either directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating
policies of another entity or business so as to obtain benefits from its activities, it is classified as a
subsidiary. The consolidated financial statements present the results of the Group and its subsidiaries



¥R At URTaRT 0% /3050 Soaltee Hotel Limited

(“the Group”) as if they formed a single entity.

Consolidation of financial statements of subsidiaries has been done in line with NFRS 10: Consolidated
Financial Statements. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements are
combined line by line by adding the like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in
subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary are eliminated. All intra group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group
are eliminated in preparation of the consolidated financial statements. SHL has opted for carve out
alternative accounting treatment issued by ICAN relation to use uniform accounting policies for like
transactions in consolidation of financial statement. Under the carve out alternative treatment, the
investment made in associate by SHL’s fully owned subsidiary is measured at cost instead of measuring
it using equity method.

2.2.2 Associates

Profits or losses arising on transactions between the Group and its associates are recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate. The investor's share in the associate's profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalized and included in the carrying amount of the
associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

Investment in associates of the subsidiaries are recorded at cost in line with the carve out issued by
ICAN for alternative accounting treatment as described in note 2.2.1.

2.2.3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
i. Recognition
The Group initially recognizes financial assets on trade date which is the date on which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, or an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue.

ii. Classification and Measurement

Financial Assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed (the
entity’s business model) and their contractual cash-flows characteristics. These factors determine
whether the financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (‘FVOCTI’) or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL)).
- At amortized cost:
Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments for which the Group has intent and ability to hold till maturity. They are initially
recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate
method less any impairment losses.
— At fair value through profit or loss:
Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if the Group manages such
instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on its fair value. Attributable
transaction costs and changes in fair value are taken to revenue.
— At fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets at FVOCI are non-derivative financial assets that are not classified in any of the
above category. Financial assets at FVOCI are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
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attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are measured at
fair value, as far as such fair value is available, and changes therein, which are recognized in other
comprehensive income and presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is
derecognized, gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial
liabilities are measured at amortized costs using effective interest rate method.

iii. Derecognition
Financial Assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial
assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in
which the Group neither transfer nor retains substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new assets obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is recognized in retained
earnings.

Financial Liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expired.

iv. Offsetting

The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when and only when, the Group has a legal right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Amortized cost measurement

The 'amortized cost' of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between initial
amount recognized and the maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.

vi. Fair value measurement

Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm’s length transaction. Quoted market values
represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an organized and liquid market. Where
quoted market values are not available, fair values are estimated by other techniques.

vii. Identification and measurement of impairment
Financial assets

At each reporting date the Group assesses the objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired or not. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:
— significant financial difficulty of the debtor
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— breach of contract, such as default or delinquency by a debtor

— observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of debtor
The amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and amount the
management considers it as recoverable on the basis of financial position of the party and appropriate
estimation made by the management. Receivables considered as less likely to be received are provided
allowance for loss and charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.

In addition, for an investment in an unquoted equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its
net worth is objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and reflected in an allowance account
against debtors. Impairment losses on equity investment are routed through Statement of OCI. Interest
on the impaired assets continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. If an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then
the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through income statement (OCI in case of available for sale
investment).

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity investments increases and the increase can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the impairing
loss is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any increase in fair value is recognized through OCI.

2.2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less cost and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss. Provisions against impairment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates. Impairment charges are included in profit or loss except to the extent they
reverse gains previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

2.2.5 Foreign Currency

Transactions entered into by the Group entities in a currency other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the "functional currency" is Rs.) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled
monetary assets and liabilities are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

2.2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price
and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable
costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow in to the Group. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
component/ part has cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful
lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.
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Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress (CWIP).
At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences.

Salvage Value
The Group has assessed the salvage value of all its property, plant and equipment to be 5% of its original cost.

Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until
they are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant and
equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.

Management of the Group has assessed useful life of the following category of assets as mentioned.

Category of Assets Estimated useful life
Building 35 - 70 years

Other civil structures 20 - 35 years

Plant and machinery 10 - 30 years

Vehicle 10 - 20 years
Computer and accessories 7 years

Office Equipment 10 years

Furniture, fixture and furnishing 10 years

Leasehold Development 3 years

2.2.7 Intangible Assets
Computer Software

Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the software. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives.

2.2.8 Investment Property
The Group holds certain assets (land and building) for purpose other than its core operating function.
Such assets are classified as investment property.

Items of investment property are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of
dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow in to the Group. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following a change in
its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item and its fair
value is recognized directly in equity if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item, the gain is transferred to
retained earnings. Any loss is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Incomes arising from use of investment property by third parties are recognized as lease income from
operating lease. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is
booked as operating lease income, which the Group believes is more representative than the straight line
method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

Salvage Value
Group has assessed the salvage value of its depreciable investment property to be 5% of its original cost.

Depreciation
Land that form part of investment property is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on other items
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of investment property so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.

Depreciable investment properties are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management considered the useful life of investment property to be of 55 years.

2.2.9 Investments

Investments in shares of the companies are classified as either at amortized cost or at fair value. The
classification of investment and its subsequent measurement is dependent on the business model for
managing such investments and contractual cash flow characteristics.

Investments are measured at fair value unless measured at amortized cost. Investments are measured at
amortized cost if such investment is held with in order to collect contractual cash flows and contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent changes in the investments measured at amortized cost are charged to Profit or Loss.
Investments measured at fair value opting the routing through Other Comprehensive Income, at initial
recognition, for adjusting the changes in fair value are charged through Other Comprehensive Income
that forms part of the equity of the Company. Changes in fair value of other investments are charged to
Profit or Loss.

2.2.10 Inventories

Stock of food, beverages, store and operating supplies are initially recognized at cost and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the variable selling expenses.

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred directly in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition.

2.2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and other short term highly liquid
investments. For the purpose, any cash placement deposits, call deposit or other highly liquid items with
the maturity period of 90 days from the date of transaction is considered as cash equivalent.

2.2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at transaction value less allowance for impairment.

Staff loan are measured at amortized cost. Discounting rate has been arrived by considering comparable
market rates of similar types of loan. Difference of amortized value and book value of loan is charged to
profit or loss for the period of staff loan.

2.2.13 Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The Group’s equity shares are classified as
equity instruments.

2.2.14 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are either defined benefit plan or defined contribution plan. Employee benefits of
SHL comprise of gratuity, provident fund and accumulated leave. These benefits are provided as per
the Employee Service Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreement between Employee Union and the
Company.

Provident Fund-Defined Contribution Plan

SHL pays pre-defined Provident Fund benefit to Social Security Fund (SSF) and SHL does not have any
legal or constructive obligation to pay additional amount in future. Contributions to Provident fund are
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate.
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Gratuity-Defined Contribution Plan

SHL is required to pay pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund as gratuity to employees. SHL accrues
8.33% of basic salary of staff as gratuity benefits in accordance with the Labor Law of Nepal till Falgun
2076 while SHL has deposited Employee Gratuity in SSF from Chaitra 2076. The amount presented in
financial statements is the actual liability of gratuity at each reporting date.

Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Accumulated leaves, encashment of which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the
present value of the obligation as at the reporting date determined based on an actuarial valuation.

2.2.15 Income Tax
Deferred Tax

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected realization or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates that are expected to apply in
subsequent periods.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax is calculated
reasonably in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act as per management assumption and
best judgment.

General corporate tax rate is 25%. SHL is entitled to a rebate of 15% on the General tax rate as per the
provisions of Income Tax Act 2058. Accordingly, tax rate applicable to the SHL for current fiscal year is
21.25% (previous year rate was 10.63%).

2.2.16 Revenue
Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the group
and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of Value Added Taxes, Civil
Aviation Fee and Service Charges where applicable.

Revenue from Sale of Services

Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of services and is stated net of Value Added Tax (VAT) and
Service Charges. Revenue from The Soaltee Gate Gourmet -Flight Catering Division sales is stated net of
Civil Aviation Fee & Service charge.

Revenue from package sales is disclosed net of credits and refunds, included as part of the package.

Service Charge
Income from service charges is recognized on accrual basis net of contribution to be made to the Hotel
Association Nepal (HAN) and the Employees as per Labor Rules as per the previous agreement between
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HAN and representatives of the Employees Union till 26 January, 2023.

Dividend
Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the right to receive the payment is
established.

Other Income

Other income are recognized on accrual basis when there are reasonable basis to ascertain the amount
and there is reasonable basis for recoverability except for certain membership fee, which are insignificant
to the total revenue.

2.2.17 Expenses

Expenses are accounted on accrual basis where there are reasonable basis to estimate ascertain the
obligation and rationality of such obligation.

License Fee

License fees payable in relation to technical assistance to Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte. Ltd, to operate the
Flight Catering Unit under the brand name of ‘The Soaltee Gate Gourmet’ is based on a fixed percentage
of the Net Sales Value as specified in the Technical Assistance Agreement.

Employee Bonus
Employee bonus is provided in line with the provisions of Bonus Act 2030 BS.

2.2.18 Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. For arrangements
entered into prior to 1 Shrawan 2074 the group has determined whether the arrangement contain lease
on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

SHL has entered into operating lease arrangement for use of property at The Soaltee Gate Gourmet. The
lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked as operating lease
expenses, which the Group believes is more representative than the straight line method, in line with
para 33 of NAS 17: Leases.

Group has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use its facilities and infrastructures to
third parties. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked
as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight line
method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

2.2.19 Provisions
The Group applies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in accounting for
non-financial liabilities.

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is more
likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation, which can be
reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated costs when an obligation exists.

2.2.20 Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing
and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Group classifies an asset as current when it is:
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- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
The Group classifies a liability as current when:

e It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.2.21 Segment Reporting
The Group’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating segments
are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Company's management
of the Group, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments. All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm's length basis, with
intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated centrally. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining business segment performance.

2.2.22 Government Grant
Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, is recognized when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to grant and the grants will be
received. Government grants is recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Group recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

2.2.23 Operating Cycle
The Company considers its operating cycle to be of 12 months.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.2: Intangible Assets

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Software Total

Cost

Balance at 01.04.2078 14,937,654 14,937,654
Addition - -
Disposal/Transfer - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 14,937,654 14,937,654
Addition - -
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2080 14,937,654 14,937,654
Amortization

Balance at 01.04.2078 13,731,316 13,731,316
Charge for the year 402,242 402,242
Disposal - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 14,133,558 14,133,558
Charge for the year 377,242 377,242
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2080 14,510,800 14,510,800

Net Book Value

At 01.04.2078 1,206,338 1,206,338
At 32.03.2079 804,096 804,096
At 31.03.2080 426,854 426,854

Note 3.3: Investment Property A R
mount in Rs.

Particulars Freehold Land Building Total

Cost

Balance at 01.04.2078 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal/Transfer - - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2080 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100

Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2078 - 79,698,359 79,698,359
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 - 81,677,482 81,677,482
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2080 - 83,656,605 83,656,605
Net Book Value

At 01.04.2078 4,707,287 86,448,453 91,155,741
At 32.03.2079 4,707,287 84,469,330 89,176,618
At 31.03.2080 4,707,287 82,490,207 87,197,495
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.4: Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using known future tax rate. Deferred tax assets are

recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the management

believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 01.04.2079 Credit/(Charge) to | Credit/(Charge) to 31.03.2080
SOPL OCI
Fixed Assets (53,303,422) (8,967,206) - (62,270,628)
Gratuity Provision 16,203,871 (1,194,073) - 15,009,798
Provision for Leave 10,406,635 1,557,059 - 11,963,694
Trade and Other Receivable 9,906,178 1,062,500 - 10,968,678
Total (16,786,738) (7,541,720) - (24,328,458)
. Credit/(Charge) to Credit/(Charge) to
Particulars 01.04.2078 32.03.2079
SOPL OCI
Fixed Assets (45,629,725) (7,673,697) - (53,303,422)
Gratuity Provision 24,334,467 (8,130,596) - 16,203,871
Provision for Leave 13,592,896 (3,186,261) - 10,406,635
Trade and Other Receivable 8,843,678 1,062,500 - 9,906,178
Total 1,141,316 (17,928,054) - (16,786,738)
Note 3.5: Investments
Amount in Rs.
Particulars 31.03.2080 | 32.03.2079
Non-Current
At Amortized Cost - -
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
At Fair Value Through OCI 274,687,563 272,982,742
Total 274,687,563 272,982,742
Current
At Amortized Cost - 27,500,000
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
At Fair Value Through OCI - -
Total - 27,500,000
Investment comprises the following:
At Amortized Cost (A) 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Term Deposit - 27,500,000
Total Investment at Amortized Cost - 27,500,000
At Fair Value Through OCI (B)
Investment in Associates
Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. 261,840,000 261,840,000
Sub-total 261,840,000 261,840,000
Investment in other Entities
(100000 shares of Ro. 100 eact) 12,847,563 11,142,742
Sub-total 12,847,563 11,142,742
Total Investment through OCI 274,687,563 272,982,742
Proportion of voting rights
Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. 24% 24%
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 5.97% 5.97%

Additional Information of Investments is provided in Note 4.20.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.6: Trade and Other Receivable

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Non-Current
Other Receivable 7,051,419 7,051,419
Deposit for Appeal 9,299,783 4,454,681
Deposits 7,065,592 4,338,095
Loans and Advances to Employees 6,982,735 18,921,585
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 41,304 1,228,540
Total 30,440,833 35,994,320
Less: Allowance for Impairment (7,051,419) (7,051,419)
Total 23,389,414 28,942,901
Current
Trade Receivable
Trade Receivable 266,725,614 248,716,457
Less: Allowance for Impairment (44,565,887) (39,565,887)
Trade Receivable-Net 222,159,727 209,150,570
Other Receivable
Loans and Advances to Employees 13,814,856 11,634,470
Loans and Advances to Other 28,209,222 34,177,783
Advances to Contractor and Suppliers 54,267,965 18,939,147
VAT Recoverable 3,089,678 1,959,002
Management Fees Recoverable 4,036,281 4,036,281
Others 493,843 1,007,394
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 265,776 1,095,683
Total Other Receivable 104,177,621 72,849,760
Total 326,337,348 282,000,330

Additional information on other receivable included in non-current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.1.

Trade receivables are normally collected as per credit terms with the parties, generally within a period of 90

days. Trade receivable is non-interest bearing. Additional information on Trade receivable included in Current

receivable is provided in Note 4.10.2.

Note 3.7: Inventories

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Stores and Spares 21,790,412 12,230,616
Provision, Beverage and Others 37,221,699 23,253,071
Uniform and Linen 42,147,234 35,325,673
Crockery, Cutlery etc. 21,044,174 14,134,600
Total 122,203,519 84,943,960
Note 3.8: Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Cash in Hand 3,889,934 2,766,717
Cheques in Hand 700,000 -
Balances with Bank 68,007,001 34,011,553
Total 72,596,935 36,778,270
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.9: Share Capital

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2080 | 32.03.2079
Authorized
150,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,500,000,000| 1,500,000,000
Issued
100,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000,000,000| 1,000,000,000
Subscribed
88,471,506 Shares of Rs.10/- each (Fully Paid Up) 884,715,060 842,579,730
Total 884,715,060 842,579,730
Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Balance at the beginning of the year 84,257,973 84,257,973
Add: Bonus Issue 4,213,533 -
Balance at the end of year 88,471,506 84,257,973
Details of Shareholding
Major Corporate Shareholders 69% 69%
General Shareholders 31% 31%
Note 3.10: Retained Earning and Reserves
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Share Premium 16,000,000 16,000,000
Other Reserve 7,288,761 7,288,761
Revaluation Reserve 35,198,427 35,198,427
Fair Value Reserve for Equity Investment 2,847,563 1,142,742
Retained Earnings 1,162,705,760 846,400,371
Total 1,224,040,511 906,030,301
Note 3.11: Loans and Borrowings
Particulars 31.03.2080 | 32.03.2079
Non-Current
Secured- Hire Purchase 7,931,571 9,170,921
Total 7,931,571 9,170,921
Current
Overdraft and Working Capital Loan - 51,611,159
Current portion of Hire Purchase Loan 1,308,207 2,209,515
Total 1,308,207 53,820,674
Note 3.12: Employee Benefits
Particulars 31.03.2080 | 32.03.2079
Non-Current
Gratuity 70,634,343 76,253,510
Less: Plan Assets (1,259,866) (2,253,240)
Net Gratuity Liability 69,374,477 74,000,270
Accumulated Leave 56,299,735 48,972,399
Total 125,674,212 122,972,669
Current
Salary and Wages Payable 13,028,397 11,250,076
Bonus Payable 68,712,943 31,517,125
Total 81,741,340 42,767,201
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.13: Income Tax Receivable/(Payable)

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Advance Income Tax 110,149,978 34,544,399
Income Tax Liability (125,120,495) (661,055)
Total (14,970,517) 33,883,344
Note 3.14: Trade and Other Payable
Particulars 31.03.2080 | 32.03.2079
Non-Current
Retention and Security Deposit 15,159,071 11,679,331
Advances Received 48,947,939 52,860,983
Unclaimed Dividend 13,539,009 10,514,616
Total 77,646,019 75,054,930
Current
Sundry Creditors 236,584,587 220,308,257
Other Payable
Advances Received 34,999,574 34,999,574
Civil Aviation Fee - 394,695
Flight Kitchen Franchise Fee 1,148,430 6,487,466
VAT Payable 277,224 -
Service Charge 12,102,566 54,648,520
Housing Fund 26,334,029 26,334,029
Corporate Social Responsibility 8,431,238 10,189,783
Other Liabilities 68,283,278 46,574,811
Total 388,160,926 399,937,135
Trade and other payable are non-interest bearing in nature.
Note 3.15: Revenue from Operation
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Room 551,094,425 246,990,610
Food 1,496,892,775 972,822,567
Beverage 104,935,519 70,835,073
Cigar and Cigarettes 1,497,714 658,625
Telephone 10,026 11,201
Laundry Income 1,779,057 1,229,505
Business Centre 7,105 13,725
Total 2,156,216,621 1,292,561,306
Note 3.16: Other Income
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Premises Rental Charge 36,397,311 25,993,604
Interest on Loans & Advances at Amortized Cost 1,108,581 1,765,522
Interest on Call Account/Time Deposit 156,390 1,851,973
Miscellaneous Receipts 10,644,900 6,253,092
Income from Service Charge 21,403,302 25,267,588
Dividend Income 19,271,347 1,222,517
Profit on Sale of Assets 4,506,502 3,110,365
Profit on Sale of Investment - 9,170,962
Exchange Gain 2,548,345 2,124,666
Others 2,132,490 1,185,169
Reversal of Provision for Gratuity 2,315,290 -
Reversal of Provision for Leave - 1,143,502
Unclaimed Balance Written Back - 244,415
Total 100,484,458 79,333,375
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.17: Consumption of Food and Beverage

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Food 350,648,786 241,240,023
Beverage 28,830,695 18,544,340
Cigarettes 603,925 407,685
Total 380,083,406 260,192,048
Note 3.18: Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Salary and Wages 250,363,992 159,441,674
Allowances 69,270,703 49,102,514
Festival Allowance 13,042,251 -
Overtime 8,510,124 1,709,000
Employees Meal 42,212,553 21,731,259
Soaltee Staff Welfare 2,468,229 2,496,617
Gratuity 13,593,805 10,188,080
Leave 11,095,599 -
Provident Fund 16,315,871 11,894,843
Clinic Expenses 2,806,557 2,025,427
Amortization of staff loan - 1,188,456
Incentive Exit Scheme 3,975,504 32,099,623
Bonus 68,712,943 31,517,125
Total 502,368,131 323,394,618
Additional information on Gratuity is provided in Note 4.4.a.
Note 3.19: Operating Expenses
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Linen 11,354,900 5,740,121
Laundry Supplies 37,871,510 19,521,677
Crockery & Cutlery 3,913,305 2,422,010
Silverware 529,198 220,150
Cleaning Supplies 14,245,204 7,714,558
F & B Paper Supplies 17,328,664 10,311,020
Guest Supplies 32,244,290 12,919,885
Water & Water Treatment 10,413,839 16,115,702
Garden Maintenance 1,692,064 2,103,112
Pest Control 2,496,000 2,588,000
Waste Removal 1,243,300 823,100
Power and Fuel 115,138,899 91,558,812
Repair and Maintenance 36,928,650 24,713,592
Total 285,399,823 196,751,739
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.20: Other Expenses

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Rental Charges 10,367,981 7,277,087
Travelling 24,778,318 7,715,747
Transport and Conveyance 34,364,718 18,581,566
Audit Fee 645,000 651,700
Legal and Professional Fees 9,303,004 10,756,574
Directors' Meeting Fees 1,494,123 423,528
Licence & Taxes 33,879,627 19,715,693
Bank Charges 8,794,279 4,809,477
Annual General Meeting Expenses 970,145 662,555
Commissions 16,110,637 3,208,662
Insurance 10,071,617 7,985,808
Communication Expenses 5,454,834 4,352,726
Printing and Stationery 7,551,309 4,836,654
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 16,795,825 9,349,531
Marketing and Reservation Expenses 7,717,702 4,210,684
Training and Conference 1,683,173 1,900,800
Books and Newspaper 186,937 92,282
Membership & Subscription 2,281,856 2,175,432
Security Services 15,204,998 9,760,149
Uniform Expenses 7,340,730 6,274,728
Entertainment 4,536,967 785,959
Allowance for Impairment 5,000,061 5,000,000
Software Service Charges 6,501,297 5,536,344
Investment Written Off 3,443,328 -
Banquet Expenses 9,421,467 2,570,683
Kitchenette Expenses 7,870,198 4,314,205
Corporate Social Responsibility 5,549,796 2,972,432
Miscellaneous 20,079,074 8,920,532
Total 277,399,001 154,841,538

Note 3.21: Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by
weighted average number of equity shares for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. If the number of
ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a capitalization, bonus issue or share
split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for

all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share has been done as stated above.

Particulars [ 2079-80 [ 2078-79

Basic Earnings per Share

Profit/(Loss) for the year 556,486,595 299,216,357
Number of shares 88,471,506 88,471,506
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) 6.29 3.38
Diluted Earnings per Share

Profit/(Loss) for the year 556,486,595 299,216,357
Weighted average number of shares 88,471,506 88,471,506
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) 6.29 3.38
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.22: Financial Instruments Classification and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments are classified in accordance with Note 2.2.3. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Company has used its own data (accounting
value) and considered if there exist factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book value of assets
or liabilities. Such factors did not exist as per management evaluation and accordingly, book value has been

considered as fair value.

Amount in Rs.

As at 31.03.2080 | Carrying Amount | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 349,419,682 349,419,682
Investment - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 72,596,935 72,596,935
Total At Amortized Cost 422,016,617 422,016,617
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 274,687,563 274,687,563
Total Financial Assets 696,704,180 - 696,704,180
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 465,806,945 465,806,945
Loans and Borrowings 9,239,778 9,239,778
Total Financial Liabilities 475,046,723 - 475,046,723
As at 32.03.2079 Carrying Amount Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 308,619,008 308,619,008
Investment 27,500,000 27,500,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 36,778,270 36,778,270
Total At Amortized Cost 372,897,278 372,897,278
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 272,982,742 272,982,742
Total Financial Assets 645,880,020 - 645,880,020
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 474,992,065 474,992,065
Loans and Borrowings 62,991,595 62,991,595
Total Financial Liabilities 537,983,660 - 537,983,660
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Additional Information

4.1 Share Capital
The Group has single class of equity shares where shares of Soaltee Hotel Limited have face value of Rs.
10 per share and subsidiaries have face value of Rs. 100 per share. Every member holding equity shares
therein shall have voting rights in proportion to the member’s share of the paid up equity share capital.

4.2 Non-Controlling Interest
Soaltee Hotel Ltd. has made investment in one subsidiary where holding is 100%. Upon consolidation
of the financial statements, total portion of financial statements is added by eliminating the portion of
other shareholders by way of non-controlling interest.

4.3 Reserves and Retained Earnings
a. Share premium

SHL had issued shares in premium on 1992-93. The amount collected by SHL in excess of its face value
is credited to this account. Use of share premium shall be as provided in Company Act 2063.
b. Other Reserves

SHL had created other reserves out of capital profits on 1995. There is no movement on this reserve
since then.
c. Retained Earning

Net profit for each year is added to this reserve. Group uses this to provide dividend to its shareholders.
d. Fair Value Reserve

This reserve is created to account for changes in fair value of investments for those investments that are
opted to be measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.
e. Revaluation Reserve

Revaluation Reserve was created in 1986 when the land of SHL was revalued. For the first time adoption
of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074), the revalued amount of land has been considered at deemed cost which as
allowed by NFRS 1 and accordingly, this reserve has remain intact.

4.4 Employee Benefits
a. Gratuity

Up to 19 Bhadra 2074, gratuity was in the form of defined benefit liability in which SHL was required
to pay gratuity to staff considering the number of years in service and the recent salary of the staff.
Changes in Labor law has changed the nature of gratuity and this is now a defined contribution plan
whereby SHL is required to provide 8.33% of monthly basic remuneration as gratuity to employee with
effect from 19 Bhadra 2074. SHL has enrolled itself and it's employees in Social Security Fund (SSF) in
Chaitra 2076 and thereafter it has started making contribution towards Employee Gratuity in the fund.

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Opening Liability 76,253,510 114,515,139
Payment Made (3,303,876) (38,261,629)
Expenses Booked 13,593,805 10,188,080
Reversal of Excess Provision (2,315,291) -
Deposited in SSF (13,593,805) (10,188,080)
Closing Liability 70,634,343 76,253,510

b. Leave

Leave is classified as other long term employee liability. Liability is measured by way of actuarial valuation
for accumulated leave balance at the end of reporting periods. Changes in value of liability is as follows:
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4.5

4.6

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Opening Liability 48,972,399 63,966,570
Service Cost 8,229,115 9,058,131
Interest Cost 4,022,294 4,858,469
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (1,152,677) (15,060,102)
Benefit Paid (3,771,396) (13,850,669)
Closing Liability (A) 56,299,735 48,972,399
Liability recognized in the financial statements (B) 56,299,735 48,972,399

Basic assumptions considered for measurement of leave liability related to leave

are as follows:

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Discount Rate 8.50% 8.50%
Rate of Compensation Increase 6% 6%
Average Expected Future Service 14 13
Average Duration of Liabilities 10 10

Plan assets have not been created for funding of payment of leave liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% increase in discount rate considered for calculating

the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Effect on:
- Service Cost (912,634) (1,141,698)
- Interest Cost 473,209 571,583
- Leave Liability (10,883,442) (10,229,102)

present value of long term leave liability.

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% decrease in discount rate considered for calculating the

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Effect on:
- Service Cost 1,109,033 1,390,162
- Interest Cost (473,209) (571,583)
- Leave Liability 13,101,212 12,348,982
Lease

SHL has entered into a lease arrangement of premises for a period of 2-3 years. The future minimum

lease rental payment to be made is as follows:

Period 2079-80 2078-79
Up to one year 13,012,097 7,487,713
One to five years 11,185,354 5,633,377
Total 24,197,451 13,121,090

Minimum lease amount receivable under such lease is as follows:

SHL has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use some part of its

assets on lease.

Period 2079-80 2078-79
Up to one year 37,607,133 33,831,520
One to five years 291,633,300 255,970,344
Above five years 172,386,540 50,406,757
Total 501,626,973 340,208,621

Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year, SHL has provided Rs. 5.55 million (previous year Rs. 2.97 million (1% of net profit after
tax) as Corporate Social Responsibility as per the Section 54 (1) of the Industrial Enterprises Act 2076.
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4.7 Risk Management objectives and policies

The Group’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments. The Board of each Group and senior management has overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management. The Group's risk management policies
are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.

i.  Market Risk
In spite of having a very high potentiality of Tourism Sector and its related to services, it is volatile
to geopolitical and domestic incidents. With stabilization in the geopolitical and domestic issues,
the tourism sector looks for bright future. However, there is risk that any domestic/international or
geopolitical incidents would impact the business of the company. However, the group through years
of operations has sustained through such risks over the years in the past.

ii. Credit Risk
The Group (SHL, in particular) provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does it
enjoy credit facility from it creditors as well. In impact on tourism sector may have impact of company
debtors' ability to pay SHL within reasonable credit period allowed. Accordingly, there exist the credit
risks to that extent. The Group through its experience over the many years has been managing such
risk well through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the regular recoverability position
by the management and the Board.

iii. Liquidity Risk
The Group has very less amount of debt funding and will not be impacted significantly. Group
monitors its liquidity position on regular basis through effective planning and forecasting.

The Group’s current assets aggregate positively against the current liabilities and accordingly, the
liquidity risk or risk that the company may not be able to settle its liabilities as they become, due
does not exist.

iv. Operational Risk

Group has been in operation since more than 53 years and have prepared and implemented various
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) in the form of clear cut delegation of authority for the activities,
guidelines regulations etc. Beside the companies of Group is required to also follow specific operating
guidelines issued by its franchise. Group believes that the controls implemented by the company
have minimized the operational risk to acceptably low level. The franchise also carries out Control
Self-Assessment at reasonable interval where the SHL scored high level marks placing it as one
among better managed hotel among hotels being managed by Franchise.

v. Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

SHL's revenue will be impacted coming from any fluctuation of exchange rate fluctuation so be on
the certain level of supplies of SHL as such exchange rate fluctuation will contribute certain level of
inflations. Since its tariffs are quoted in USD, any rate fluctuation will have the risk of impacting the
income of the SHL. It has been the tendency that the exchange rate fluctuation has generally been
upward movement except of occasional down turn movement as well. The Group has practiced not
to hold foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities for substantial period so as to minimize the
risk of exchange rate fluctuation.

4.8 Related Party Transactions

Related parties of the Group comprises of key management personnel, organization having significant
influence and Board of Directors.
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a. Significant Influence
Entities having significant influence over the Group is as follows:

i. Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. (SEPL)
Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. is major shareholder of SHL. SEPL has four representatives in the
current Board of Soaltee Hotel Ltd. (SHL). SEPL has paid Rs. 66,667 (previous year Rs. 66,667) to
SHL as operating lease rent. SHL has paid Rs. 1,102,500 to SEPL as operating lease rent. There is
no outstanding balance at the year end.

Entity where the Group has significant influence is:

i. Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd.
Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. is associate of the Group. One of the subsidiary of SHL,
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. has 24% shares in this company with investment of Rs. 261.84 million.
There is no transaction or outstanding balance of this company with the Group.

b. Other related entities
i. Nepal Airlines Corporation (NAC)
Nepal Airlines Corporation is institutional shareholder of the company. NAC has one representative
in the Board of SHL.

SHL provides flight catering services to the international flights of Nepal Airlines Corporation.
Transactions and outstanding balance with Nepal Airlines Corporation are as follows:

Revenue (in million) Receivable (in million)
Particulars
This Year Last Year This Year Last Year
Flight Catering Services 274.49 188.21 50.44 43.23

ii. Sibkrim Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
There is no transaction of this company with SHL.

c. Those charged with Governance
Those charged with governance include the Board of Directors of each companies. As SHL is the major
shareholder of all subsidiaries, the Board of those companies is ultimately controlled by Board of SHL.
The composition of Board of SHL on the reporting date is as follows:

Name Position Representative of
Mr. Dinesh Bahadur Bista Executive Chairman Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ravi Bhakta Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Rajesh Kazi Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mrs. Jaya Rajya Laxmi Shah Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ubaraj Adhikari Director Nepal Airlines Corporation
Mr. Prakash Bikram Khatri Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Sashi Raj Pandey Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Tibrewala Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Deepak Raj Joshi Director Independent Director

Mr. Lil Bahadur Khatri serves as Company Secretary of the Company.

Board members are paid Rs. 25,000 (net of withholding tax) per meeting as meeting fee for attending
each meeting of Board. Meeting fee paid to members of Board for Board as well as Other Committee
meetings during the year amounts to Rs. 1.49 million (previous year Rs. 0.4 million).

d. Key Management Personnel
The Groups' key management personnel include are Executive Chairman & Vice President of SHL and
General Manager of The Soaltee Kathmandu.
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Total compensation to key management personnel during the year is Rs. 31.84 miillion (previous year
Rs. 16.48 million). The compensation paid to Executive Chairman of SHL also includes the performance
incentive paid based on the profit of Hotel.

4.9 Unpaid Dividend
Total unpaid dividend of SHL amounted to Rs. 13.54 million (previous year Rs. 10.51 million).

4.10 Trade and Other Receivable
4.10.1 Civil Aviation Fee recoverable from Airlines

Civil Aviation Fees levied on Inflight catering services provided on international flights by SHL to three
different airlines have been disputed and not paid by the respective airlines which amounted to Rs 7.051
million (previous year Rs. 7.051 million) is still pending recovery. This has been reflected under Non-
current Trade and other receivables.

4.10.2 Trade Receivable from Jet Airways
Trade receivable amounting to Rs. 16,061,418 is pending recoverable from Jet Airways as of the reporting
date which has closed its operation from 17 April 2019 and is undergoing its insolvency proceedings.
In October 2020, a revival takeover plan of potential investors has been approved by the Committee of
Creditors of Airlines. The company has already lodged the outstanding with Jet Airways & confirmed
by Jet Airways in their official website as eligible creditors. However, the outcome of the proceeding and
business revival is yet to be known.

4.11 Lien on company's assets
Current and non-current assets of SHL, where applicable has been pledged hypothecated to bankers
providing the credit facilities. The credit facility as of the reporting date included term loan and over draft
against a vehicle, movable and immovable properties amounting to Rs. 9.24 million (previous year Rs.
62.99 million).

4.12 Contingent Liability
Group recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity or company as a present obligation as a result of
past events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate reflection in the
current financial year.

4.13 Bank Guarantee
Unexpired bank guarantee issued by Group amounted to Rs. 26.04 million (previous year Rs. 12.52
million)

4.14 Litigations or legal cases

i. Income tax Matters
Appeal Revenue Tribunal Fiscal Year 2068-69
The Inland Revenue Department has filed an appeal to review the verdict of the Revenue Tribunal
in the Honorable Supreme Court for the Fiscal Year 2068-69 which had ruled in favor of the SHL.
The Honorable Supreme Court issued its final verdict in favor of the SHL during this fiscal year.

The Supreme Court upheld the Revenue Tribunal's verdict and dismissed the appeal by the Inland
Revenue Department. The full text of the verdict of the Supreme Court is yet to be received after
publication by the Supreme Court at a later date.

Appeal Revenue Tribunal Fiscal Year 2071-72
The Revenue Tribunal has issued a verdict in favor of the SHL regarding the appeal for Review relating

to the assessment for Fiscal Year 2071-72. Despite the requirement, the Inland Revenue Department
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has not yet conducted a reassessment in accordance with the Revenue Tribunal's decision. However,
there would not be a significant obligation to the SHL relating to Fiscal Year 2071-72. It is not
expected that there will be a significant financial obligation for the SHL concerning Fiscal Year 2071-72.

ii. Income Tax Assessment status

SHL has appealed to Revenue Tribunal challenging the disallowance of expenses on Self-Assessment
Income Tax Return for the FY 2072-73, 2073-74 and 2074-75. The appeals arise due to an additional
income tax demand/claim of Rs. 2,413,333, Rs. 4,810,246 and Rs. 2,059,478 respectively as assessed
by the Large Taxpayers Office during their administrative review. SHL's management believes that it
should not incur a significant financial obligation to the SHL due to these tax claims. If any tax claim
does arise, such charges would be directly charged to SHL's accumulated profit, in accordance with
past practice.

Additionally, SHL has also submitted an appeal to Inland Revenue Department for Administrative
Review, challenging the disallowance of expenses on Self-Assessment Income Tax Return of the
FY 2075-76. This appeal is in response to an additional tax demand of Rs. 2,059,478 made by
Large Taxpayers Office during their administrative review. The management does not anticipate
a significant financial obligation arising from this claim, and any such obligation will be directly
charged to accumulated profit, consistent with the SHL's established practice.

iii. Arbitration Suit

SHL had filed a Writ Petition in the Honorable High Court Patan on the issue of Outstanding Receivable
recovery pending settlement by the then Hotel Manager, Holiday Inns (China) Ltd (Manager) seeking
the court's assistance for appointment of an arbitrator on behalf of Holiday Inns as they did not
appoint their arbitrator. The High Court has appointed an arbitrator on behalf of Holiday Inns
(China) Ltd. However, Holiday Inns (China) Ltd has challenged the appointment in the Supreme
Court of Nepal stating that they have already appointed their arbitrator. The matter is sub-judiced
in the Supreme Court.

Holiday Inns had requested the Permanent Court of Arbitration, Hague to appoint a third arbitrator or
appoint an appointing authority to appoint a third arbitrator under UNCITRAL Rules of Arbitration.
On their request, the Permanent Court of Arbitration has appointed the Singapore International
Arbitration Centre (SIAC) as the appointing authority. SHL has challenged the appointment of SIAC
as the appointing authority and the matter is also pending at the Supreme Court.

iv. Casino Royalty of the Closed down period
SHL had filed the writ petitions in the Honorable Supreme Court of Nepal against the Government
of Nepal’s demand for Casino Royalty for the period in which the casino was not in operation from
Shrawan 2068 to Kartik 2069 due to the cancellation of Nepal Recreation Centre's Casino Operation
permission. The Supreme Court has dismissed the writ. However, SHL has not yet received the full
text of the verdict from the Honorable Supreme Court of Nepal.

v. Legal cases
SHL has filed a few other cases to recover dues from some debtors and other parties as a part of its
regular business operation.
4.15 Capital Commitment
Capital contract of SHL remaining to be executed on capital accounts net of advances to Rs. 175.33
million (Previous year Rs. 160.15 million).
4.16 Letter of Credit
There is no outstanding letter of credit as at the reporting date.

4.17 Housing Fund
This fund was created as per the requirement of erstwhile Labour laws. Owing to changes in Labour law,
this fund is no longer required and no provision has been made. SHL has not paid during the year out
of the opening balance from this fund to a separate entity called Employee Housing.
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4.18 Operating Segment
Management of the companies of the Group has considered the total operation to be segregable into
three operating segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered.

i. Core Hotel Business: The operation of hotel that includes sale of rooms, food, related recreational
facilities etc. that is directly linked to operation of hotel is considered as major segment.

ii. Flight Catering: The Flight Catering Division provides flight catering services to airlines. This is
different nature to the core operating nature of the company, which is operation of hotel and related
facilities to meet its standards.

iii. Horizon Lounge: Horizon Lounge Unit provides airport lounge services to the travelers at Tribhuwan
International Airport (TIA).

The financial information about the identified segments are as follows:
(Amount in millions)

Operating Segment Hote.l Fligl,lt Horizon Total
Operation Catering Lounge
Revenue
- Food 674.18 715.49 107.22 1,496.89
- Room 551.09 551.09
- Beverage 62.44 11.95 30.55 104.94
- Others 3.29 3.29
Interest Income 1.26 1.26
Other Income 99.22 99.22
Total Revenue 1,391.49 727.44 137.77 2,256.70
Expenses*
Consumption cost 234.22 122.63 23.23 380.08
Employee Benefit Expenses 309.59 162.08 30.70 502.37
Management, Operating and Other Expenses 346.84 181.57 34.39 562.80
Depreciation and Amortization 101.86 4.51 7.27 113.64
Finance Cost 8.66 - 8.66
Total Expenses 1,001.17 470.79 95.59 1,567.55
Segment Result 390.32 256.65 42.18 689.15
Income Tax 132.66
Profit for the period 556.49
Segment Assets 2,600.67 197.66 32.19 2,830.52
Segment Liabilities** 2,830.52

* Directly associated and identifiable segment cost has been reported on actual basis while common
segment costs are allocated based on ratio of segment revenue.

**  Segment wise liabilities have not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of segment

liability.
4.19 Capital Management

Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group.
The Companies of the Group manage their capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the Group is based on
management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic needs.
We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
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The Group’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital
management. The Group's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus
on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The Group's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to
ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if
required, without impacting the risk profile of the Group. The Group will take appropriate steps in order
to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the return on capital
as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Group’s goal is to continue to be able to return
excess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during all the years
reported in this financial statement.

Liquidation of Company

During the Period, H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd., the Subsidiary Company of SHL has been
liquidated on 20 February 2023. SHL had received Rs. 18,171,347 as dividend (net of tax) and Rs.
13,463,600 as repayment of Share Capital. The balance amount Share Premium on Investment of Rs.
3,443,328 has been written off.

Regrouping and Round off

Figures have been regrouped and rearranged and rounded off to nearest rupee. Insignificant rounding
off differences may exist.
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